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INTEGRATED COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT (ICDP
- CONCEPT, OBJECTIVES, STRATEGY AND UNIQUE FEATURES

1. BACKGROUND

NCDC has been providing financial assistance to cooperatives since its inception based on
commodity or activity approach. On a review of NCDC schemes, it was felt that there was need to
look at the business operations and financial requirements of a village society in its entirety and
dovetail various schemes of NCDC to provide financial assistance in accordance with its needs.
Development of PACS as a multi-purpose entity had been identified as one of the major objectives
of the Seventh Plan. In view of the above, NCDC prepared a scheme for integrated development
of PACS on the basis of an area-based project approach. The comprehensive scheme envisaged
integrated development of primary cooperatives in the agricultural and allied sectors such as
horticulture, sericulture, piggery, poultry, fishery, etc. as well as the non-farm sectors like
handloom, rural industries and' artisans so that these societies are strengthened to become a
vibrant service and business organizations for bringing socio-economic transformation in the rural

areas.

i PROJECT OBJECTIVES

The scheme lays emphasis on the area based development in agriculture and allied
activities and promotion of household business and enterprise with special focus on helping the
weaker sections in selected district through cooperatives. The broad objectives of the scheme
are:-

(i) To undertake economic development of selected district through cooperative efforts,
specially in the area of agriculture, agricultural related/allied activities, rural and house
hold enterprises and cooperative banking /credit and deposit mobilization among rural

populace.

v (i) To strengthen the existing primary agricultural credit societies (PACS), primary
cooperative marketing societies, other functional cooperatives such as fisheries,
handloom weavers’ efc. in the project area by providing infrastructural support and

facilities, margin money for raising extra working capital to increase/diversify business



(i)

()

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

and arranging for training. and manpower development opportunities to build
professional competence in the societies. _

To develop primary agricultural credit societies as multi-purpose societies to cater to
the overall needs of the farming community, with special reference to credit, deposit
mobilization, supply of agricultural inputs, consumer goods, irrigation facilities,
extension facilities and other services for marketing of agricultural produce.

To reorient the agricultural and other credit programme to cater to the needs of small
and marginal farmers and weaker sections and strengthen organizational structure to
meet timely credit requirements and development of a support system for timely

recovery.

To prepare vertically integrated project for each selected district through backward and
forward linkages between the primary societies and the district level and state level

cooperative institutions.

To review the existing Cooperative structure and wherever necessary, revamp the
structure/merge societies, dissolve societies and create new societies with a view to

meet the needs of the members,

To promote new functional cooperatives wherever not existing, for special
commodities services and activities in the non-farm sector, particularly to provide
services/supplies to members engaged in non-form occupations and to generate

employment opportunities;

To strengthen the cooperative infrastructure in the project area to provide a wide range
of integrated service for increasing production and productivity, employment, income
and the cooperative delivery system to enable them to contribute their share towards
the achievement of national targets.

Ultimately, the project must lend to strengthening of cooperatives in the district, make them

more efficient and effective to help in improvement of socio-economic conditions of members.,
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BROAD STRATEGY

The broad strategy for implementation of the scheme is as follows:-

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

Creation of the infrastructural facilities both in farm and non-farm sector to facilitate

diversified business activities (trading, marketing and processing).

Strengthening the financial base by providing share capital and margin money
assistance for activities such as marketing of agriculture and other produce, supply of

consumer articles efc.

Creation of small size units in processing of oil seeds, rice mills, Atta Chakki, Dal Mill,
F&V units and service activities such as power generation, transport, hospitality &

tourism, healthcare, rural housing and education efc.

Preparation of a comprehensive business development plan for better goal orientation

and effective utilisation of resources.
Streamlining of systems and procedures for better business and managerial efficiency.

Training of society personnel, members of Board of Management and ordinary

members to improve their skills and capability and create necessary awareness.
Motivation through study visits and trainings and incentives for better performance.

Implementation through a special created cell and project implementation team to

achieve the targets in the stipulated period.

Foster vertical, horizontal, backward and forward linkages to sustain and enhance the

member’s interest and business prospects of the societies.



V. FUNDING

The funding is done as 75% - 85% loan component and 15% - 25% in the form of subsidy.
Project subsidy is available to only cooperatively underdeveloped and least developed states, for
all components related to agriculture and allied sector activities. However, in cooperatively
developed states, subsidy @15% has been allowed for weaker section programmes only during |
the remaining period of 12t Five Year Plan. While subsidy is @ 20% in underdeveloped states, it
is 25% in least developed states. Cost of project implementation i.e. PIT, manpower development
& training, incentives, monitoring and DPR is provided as 100% grant in-aid (50% by NCDC from
Central Sector and 50% by the concerned State Govt.). In case of special category states (North
eastern and Hill States), 100% grants-in-aid is provided by NCDC from Central Sector for this
component. Overall subsidy component including project implementation cost should not exceed
30% of the total project cost. Subsidy assistance is, however, subject to availability from

Government of India.

V. IMPLEMENTATION

A multi-disciplinary expert group prepares a detailed project report, taking into account
local resource endowment and potential for development through the existing cooperative set up.
The existing development schemes and plans operating or proposed to be implemented in the
district are also considered, based on which a perspective plan is made for the development of
agriculture and allied sector, rural and industrial sector, consumer and banking sector. These are
divided into sub-sectors like business planning, infrastructure planning, production planning,
human resource planning and financial planning for a period of 4-5 years. The report also includes
development of linkages, policy changes required, rationalization of rules and procedures etc. for

effective implementation of the projects.

The State Government while sending the proposal for the selection of district also identifies
the project implementing agency to be associated with the preparation of the project report in time

as also for monitoring the implementation of the project after the same has been sanctioned.



The Project Implementing Agency through the constitution of a Project Implementation Team

especially for execution of the project plan ensures:-

vi.

To provide financial assistance to the cooperative societies covered under the
scheme.

To assist the cooperative societies in formulation of Business Development Plans.

To provide management consultancy services and training for the elected and paid
management of the society.

To monitor the implementation of the project.

To ensure that the cooperative societies have democratically elected management.

To ensure proper training to the employees of the cooperative societies, craftsmen,
artisans and other members in the project area.

Unique Features of ICDP

The concept of ICDP and its strategy whereby all possible and resources of cooperative

development are integrated in one project is unique in the cooperative sector. It intends to provide,

in a specific area the requisite support and assistance in a package form for all round and

inclusive development of cooperatives by exploiting the available local resources in the best

interest of farmer and non-farmer members. The main distinguishing features of ICDP are -

Identification of gaps and needs of societies by an independent expert group based on
field survey, analytical study and consultation with concemed authorities.

Estimating the financial requirement to fill the gap and meet the requirements of societies
in terms of infrastructure, machinery, facilities, working capital and training and manpower
development through appraisal, scrutiny and due consultations.

Focus on integration of linkages between DCCB and Primary Societies, sociefies at
different tiers and horizontally placed primaries for sharing of resources/support and
delivery systems in the interest of farming community and allied sector artisans promoting
cooperative entrepreneurship.

Special team (PIT) for execution of the Project plan within the stipulated period and
allocated funds.

Coordinated monitoring of implementation with involvement of all concerned authorities

having stake in developmental process of the rural economy through cooperative efforts. A

P
2

&
&



- Open-ended project to allow diversifications and modifications wherever and whenever
required for better utilization of funds and improved results.

- Having features of integrated funding, integrated support, integrated implementation and
integrated monitoring with a wider objective of integrated and inclusive development
through increased businesses and employment generation on the one hand and
strengthening cooperative institutions imbibed with democratic and social values, on the
other. ‘

- For the coordination among various agencies/departments at the district and State level, a
district level coordination committee under the chairmanship of District Collector having
heads of various departments / agencies at district level as members and a State Level
Coordination Committee under the Chairmanship of Registrar of Cooperative Societies, as
Chairman and heads of concerned departments / agencies at the State level as members
are constituted. ”

' - During implementation for ascertaining the progress and problems of cooperatives and
progress of project facilities at micro-level, the Project Implementation Team carries out
regular monitoring in the project. As an integral part of the project, assistance is also
provided for creation of a project monitoring cell preferably at the office of the RCS to
coordinate and monitor the progress of various projects in the State.

- The monitoring at NCDC level is done through regular feedback from the projects in the
prescribed monitoring proforma and also by review mission consisting of Senior Officers of
NCDC.

Benefits of the Project

Based on the experiences on implementation of Integrated Cooperative Development Projects in
various districts, following benefits have been observed:

- Increase in the active membership

- Increase in profit of PACS

- Increase in non-credit business

- Increase in Agri-input distribution, marketing and processing of agricultural produce
- Improvement and increase in distribution of credit

- Rise in investment through deposit mobilization in rural areas

- Improvement in loan recovery

- Increase in income of members

- Improvement in capacity and awareness of members
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PATTERN OF ASSISTANCE

Pattern of funding under ICDP Scheme shall be as under :

SN Activity From NCDC to S/Govt. | From S/Govt. to Cooperatives
) Loan [Sub [Total [Loan | Sicap. [Sub. | Total
A. | Cooperatively Least Developed States _
i) | Infrastructure Creation (Component | & 1) 75% 25% 100% 50% 25% 25% 100%
i) | Margin money to beneficiaries societies 75% 25% 100% - 75% 25% 100%
ii) | Share capital to DCCBs 100% - 100% - 100% - 100%
iv) | Manpower Development & Training - 50% @ | 50%@ - - 100% 100%
V) | Managerial assistance to PIA and Monitoring | - 50%@ | 50%@ - - 100% 100%
Cell etc.
B. | Cooperatively Under-Developed States
i} | Infrastructure Creation (Component | & Ii) 80% 20% 100% 50% 30% 20% 100%
i) | Margin money o beneficiaries societies 80% 20% 100% - 80% 20% 100%
iii) { Share capital to DCCBs 100% - 100% - 100% - 100%
iv) | Manpower Development & Training - p0%@ | 50% @ | - - 100% 100%
v) | Managerial assistance to PIA and Monitoring | - 50%@ 50%@ - - 100% 100%
Cell etc.
C. | Cooperatively Developed States
a Weaker Section Programme / Activities
) [ Infrastructure Creation (Component I) 85% 15% 100% 50% 35% 15% 100%
ii) | Margin money to beneficiaries societies 85% 15% 100% 50% 35% 15% 100%
iii) | Share capital to DCCBs 100% - 100% - 100% - 100%
iv) | Manpower Development & Training - 50%@ 50%@ - - 100% 100%
v} | Managerial assistance to PIA and Monitoring | - 60%@ 50% @ - - 100% 100%
' | Celletec.
b) | Other than Weaker Section Programme / Activities
i) | Infrastructure Creation (Component | & Ii) 100% - 100% 50% 50% - 100%
i) | Margin money to beneficiaries societies 100% - 100% 50% 50% - 100%
ii) | Share capital to DCCBs 100% - 100% - 100% - 100%
iv) | Manpower Development & Training - 50%@ | 50%@ | - - 100% 100%
V) | Managerial assistance to PIA and Monitoring | - 50%@ 50%@ - - 100% 100%
Cell etc.
Note:

AN SR NN

Total subsidy component under any project shall, however, not exceed 30% of the total project cost.

Subsidy assistance available from any department / ministries / agencies shall be dovetailed for passing on to the cooperatives.
The subsidy is shared between the NCDC and the State Government on 50:50 basis. .

In case of special category states indicated as @ in the table above, entire subsidy component is provided by the NCDC. The
special category states are all North-Eastern States, Sikkim, Himachal Pradesh, Jammu & Kashmir and Uttrakhand.




DOVETAILING OF SUBSIDY

NCDC promotes dovetailing of subsidy assistance, wherever available from other schemes
of Central / State Govts. With a view to reduce the interest of burden of State Govts. and to extend
maximum benefit to Cooperative Societies. Back- ended subsidy for construction and renovation
of rural godowns is available under ‘Gramin Bhandaran Yojana' of the Govt. of India and is
dovetailed in ICD Projects Sanctioned by NCDC on the following pattem w.e.f 2010.2011:

* All godowns upto 1000 MT: Project cost as appraised by NCDC or actual cost or Rs.3500
per MT of Storage capacity, whichever is lower .

e For exceeding 1000 MT capacity : Project cost as appraised by NCDC or actual cost or
Rs. 3000 per MT of storage capacity , whichever is lower. For NE region/hilly areas,
normative cost will be Rs.4000 per MT or as appraised by NCDC, whichever is lower,

o For repair & renovation of godowns by cooperatives with assistance from NCDC: Project
cost as appraised by NCDC or actual cost or Rs.750 per MT of storage of capacity,
whichever is lower .

e Subsidy is limited to the minimum capacity of 25 MT capacity in NE and hilly areas and 50
MT for all others areas. In case of Cooperatives,there is no restriction on subsidy
admissible with regard to the capacity of the godown. :

Such godowns must be located outside municipal imits.
The capacity of godowns shall be calculated @0.4ton per cubic meter
25%of the cost for renovation of godowns.,
Subsidy would be available as under:;
- 25% of the capital cost of the godown Project subject to a maximum ceiling on
subsidy of Rs.50.00 Iakh *

- 33.33% of the capital cost of the godown project in N.E States, Hilly areas and
societies belonging to SC/ST categories subject to amaximum ceiling on subsidy
of Rs.60.00 Lakh*

* No maximum ceiling on subsidy in the case of Projects of rural godowns of Cooperatives
assisted by NCDC

e Rural godown shall conform to technical specifications relating to implementation of the
negotiable warehouses Receipt System (NWRS) vis-a-vis norms set out for accreditation
Iregistraion of godowns by the Warehousing Development & Regularity Authority (WDRA).

* Godowns built uner the scheme shall be structurally sound on account of engineering
considerations and functionally suitable to store Agricultural Produce. To ensure scientific
construction and operation of rural godowns , entrepreneur will be required to obtain
license from State Warehousing Corporations to operate such godowns under state
Warehousing Act.

o Assistance under the schemes will be available on capital cost of construction of godown
only, including allied facilities like consumer OOP., agri-clinics weighing , grading
Jpackaging quality certification , warehousing etc. to meet various requirement of farmers.

8
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o Godowns must be completed within 15 month of the sanction of assistance extendable by
6months in case of abnormal delay.

e Cooperative developed state can avail the benefit of this benefit of this subsidy as ICD
Projects in these states are not entitied for ICDP subsidy on the pattern applicable to
cooperatively under —developed and least developed states.

» Loan assistance sanctioned by NCDC for construction/renovation of rural godowns is
converted in subsidy provided State Gowt. to efc. it also convert its loan/share capital
assistance to societies for this purpose into subsidy.

» Farmers keeping their produce in godowns will be eligible to avail pledge loan on
hypothection of their produce. Terms and condition goveming pledge loans viz. margin
rate of interest ,period of pledge, amount etc. will be as per guidelines issued by
RBI/NABARD and as per normal banking practices followed by finance institutions.

Similarly is made available for the Projects for development/strengtening of Agricultural Marketing
Infrastructure grading and standardization under Govt. of India schemes on the following pattern:

* Subsidy @25% of the Project cost with a ceiling on investment upto Rs. 50.00 Lakh .

* Subsidy @33.33% of the Project cost in North Eastern Region, Hilly areas and societies of
Sc/ST categories subject to the investment cost Rs. 60.00Lakh.

«» Schemes is applicable to the United/UTs where the APMC Act has been amended eg.
Madhya Pradesh ,Tamil Nadu ,Kerala, Manipur, Andhra Pradesh, Punjab, Himachal
Pradesh , Nagaland ,Sikkim, Rajasthan , A&N Island , Daman &Diu and Dadar &Nagar
Havelli etc. '
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PLANNING FOR PACS
-CONCEPT, COMPONENTS AND PROCESS

PLANNING — A BASIC MANAGERIAL FUNCTION

Planning, controliing, organizing, staffing, motivating and directing are the
managerial functions designed to realize the organisational objectives. Planning, however, is
the most basic and precedes all other functions. Planning permits coordinated efforts towards
the attainment of predetermined objectives. It thus provides direction to the organisation. It is
through well-thought planning alone that management decides what to do, when to do and who
will do. It comprises of two aspects - (a) improvement of the organization within the boundaries
that are laid down, and (b) questioning, evaluation and restructuring of boundaries themselves.
In fact, testing and correcting the boundaries is a vital part of business planning. Planning is not

an activity, it is a process which involves selection from among many alternatives.

WHAT IS PLANNING?

- Planning means assessing the future and determining the objectives in the
context of future, '

- dentifying the activities to be carried out to achieve these objectives,
and when, how any by whom activities are to be carried out,

- over a time span.

Thus a plan is ‘a projected course of action’. A cooperative is a corporate body for
doing business, and the planning for it requires appropriate business skills and methods.



WHAT MAKES A GOOD PLAN?

A "good plan’ is that which is:

- based on clearly defined objectives

- simple

- establishing standards

- flexible

- balanced 7

- uses available resources to the utmost before creating new authorities and new
resources

- serves as a sound mechanism of control

ADVANTAGES DUE TO PLANNING IN PACS

Planning for Business Development is the first step to overcome the deficiencies in
working of PACS. It helps a PACS in following manners:-

Promotes Institutional Element

Minimizes Risks and Uncertainties

Optimizes Performance
Provides a Basis of Control

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PLANNING (BDP) OF EACH PACS SHOULD DEAL WITH-

)

* Increasing Existing Business

* Diversifying into new profitable areas of business based on potentials and members’
needs |

* Enhancing members' participation

 Promoting deposit mobilization

* Reduction in overdues

*  Organizing dormant members into self-help groups (SHG)

* Strengthening business linkages with marketing and consumer coops.



BDP AND ITS COMPONENTS

¢ Basic Business Plan

Functional/Activity Plans
- Credit Business Plan
- Non Agril. Credit Plan
- Consumer Business Plan
- Inputs Business Plan
- Agril. Marketing Business Plan

Preparation of Budgets

Implementation of Plans

Monitoring and Control

PLANNING PROCESS

Planning for Business Development is a rational process of deciding in advance the nature
and volume of business activities which a PACS is going to undertake for the benefits of its
members in a specified period. It has to be necessarily formulated in light of business potentials
and threats in the area of operation of the society as well as strengths and weaknesses of the
society. The plan for each business activity must also indicate the relative costs and margin of
profit the society will eam from the activity. It has to be prepared well in advance for 3 period of

one to five years.

This exercise may be carried out in two different ways (1) A plan may be prepared by
E:overing the entire business activities of PACS in an aggregate manner for a certain period of time
which is called Basic or Master Business Plan. From this, plans for each business activity are
derived and implemented (2) A plan may be prepared for each of the business activity separately
for one year, such as credit plan, agril. Inputs plans etc. (called operational or functional plans).
These activity plans may be then integrated into one to constitute a Basic or Master Business Plan.
Itis the second approach which is mostly adopted by PACS.



The process of preparation of implementation of Business Development Planning consists
of following phases and stages:-

——tr

INITIATION A Awareness Creation and acceptance of
concept by the members, Managing Committee
members and Managers of PACS. |

B. Data Collection
- Preparation of area profile
- Preparation of survey report on current
performance, strengths and weaknesses of
PACS
2. PREPARATION Data Analysis
Identification and Definition of problems

Setting goals and objectives

OO0 »m >

Preparation of draft operational/functional
Plans.
- Estimating business turnover
- Trade margin, total costs and net profit
E. Integration of operational plans into basis
plan.

3. FINALISATION A Finalization of plans in consultation with
members and obtaining their consent and
commitments.

4, APPROVAL A Approval of Plan by Managing Committee of

' PACS

5. COMMENCEMENT OF Phasing of Targets

IMPLEMENTATION Mobilizing support of various agencies

Raising required resources |

Establishing linkages at various levels

moo o >»

Activising Dormant Members



INFORMATION NEEDS FOR BUSINESS PLANNING

Preparation of plans by PACS for business development basically needs two types of
information — the relevant information about (1) area of operation of the society, and 2)
performance of the PACS for atleast last 3 years. The important information needed under these 2
broad categories are indicated here:

I AREA PROFILE

Geography

Demographical Aspects

Land Use and Distribution of Land Holding
Occupational Distribution of Population
Crops Grown and Agril. Production
Cropping Pattern

Irrigation Facilities

Inputs Consumption Pattemn

© XN O O A W N A

Marketing Conditions & Facilities Available

-
o

Crop-wise Marketable Surplus
Market Outlets

Economic Activities

— b e

Population coverage by PACS

-
:h

Business Potentials & Problems

-—
(4]

Business competition

IL. PACS PERFORMANCE

1. Name, Location and other Background

2. Types of Membership (Individual, Govt.
other coops. Etc.)

3. Composition of Membership (Big, Medium,
Small Farmers, Rural Artisans, Landless

Labourers efc.)

W
]



4, Financial Position
- Share Capital
- Reserve & other funds
- Deposits
- Borrowings
- Investment
- Advances
- Fixed Assets
- Working Capital
- Gross & Net proﬁt/Loss

5 Activity-wise Business Turnover
- Agril. Advances
- Non-Agril. Advances
- Sales of Agril. Inputs
- Marketing of outputs
- Sales of Consumer goods

Activitywise Income & Expenditure
Demand & Collection of Loans
Managerial Information

© © N o

Main Problems of the society
10.  Infrastructural facilities - godown, processing unit,
working shed, shop, tractor other machinery etc.

PREPARATION OF FUNCTIONAL PLANS AND THEIR INTEGRATION

‘ Once the business-wise objectives have been decided, manager has to work out targets
for every business by PACS for next year. These targets after due approval of authorities, are
entrusted to the respective staff to work on these and achieve them during the year. Estimating
business - targets for a business activity means projection of sales (credit disbursement increase
of credit plan) for the next year. The extemal and internal factors/elements to be

oy

»
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considered for estimating sales for each of the functional plan (credit, input, consumer, agri.
processing deposit mobilization-cum-utilization plan) may vary and must be included to workout
realistic business/sales targets. Simultaneously, Trade Margin, Total Costs and Net Profit for
undertaking stipulated sales are estimated. Trade margin means margin of profit available on
sales price. It is difference between cost price (cost of goods sold) and sale price and is also
called gross profit. Total costs include all types of running costs or overhead expenses consisting
of items under profit and loss accounts. Total costs should be maintained at a lower level than
trade margins, because net surplus will emerge only when trade margin is greater than total costs.
If total costs are higher than trade margin, there will be a loss. Net Profit means balance of trade
margin after meeting the total costs. Infact, preparing estimates of business turnover, trade
margin, total cost and net surplus for each of the business activity may be said to be its business

plan for a stipulated period.

Subsequently, financial requirements for each business needs to be worked out. First, the
expected rate of turnover of each business in a year is decided. Next, an estimated business
volume of each business activity is divided by rate of turnover to get financial requirements. The
different sources to raise there funds are identified then. Basically, the manager has to see how
much funds can be raised through internal resources like share capital, reserve and other funds
and deposits from members and non-members. The balance requirement of funds may have to be
borrowed from banks and financial institutions. Once availability of funds is decided,'the required

amount may be allocated fo different activity.

All the functional plans are then integrated into a total Business Development Plan (Master
or Basic Plan) for a PACS.

The indicative formats for preparation of BDP and projection of financial requirements are

as follow:



Business Development Planning in PACS - INDICATIVE FORMATS

(Rs. in 000)

Busijness Business
Activity Turnover

Trade
Margin
Costs

Total
Running

Net
Surplus

Credit

Short Term
- Kharif
- Rabi
Medium Term
- Farm Sector
- IRDP
- Non-Farm Sector

Long Term
- Consumption

Inputs

- Seed

- Fertilizers

- Implements
Plant Protection
Others

Marketing
- Outright
- Commission
- Others

Consumer
- Controlled
- Non-Controlled
- Others
Storage

Deposit
- Fixed
- Others

Any other Activity

Note:  On the same format PACS may prepare its projected business

plan for one o five years

—
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Projected Financial Requirements and Sources to Raise the Funds

Business Business Numberof  Financial Sources to
Activity Volume Turnovers Requirements  Raise
‘ Funds own/Borrowing
*  Agri Credit
*  Marketing
e Agn. Inputs
e  Consumer
e QOthers
dekkkk
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UNDERSTANDING ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Content of Financial Statements

Financial statements are generally limited to quantitative financial information about
transactions and events as opposed to more qualitative statements regarding financial condition
and well being. For example, a statement of operations may show an excess of expenses over
revenue (i.e. a loss) of Rs.20,000 for the year. The statements will not comment on the future
effect that the loss may have on the organization. It is up to the reader to interpret the

information., ’

Financial statements are based on past rather than future transactions and events. Readers
often look to historical information contained in financial statements to help predict the future
- - cash flows of an organization. Predictions are, however, not an objective of the statements.
Instead, the statements are intended to reflect what has already happened. In the example
above, the existence of a loss does not provide sufficient information for a reader to determine
if there is a serious cash fiow problem or if the loss was an anomaly. The fact that a loss
happened should, however, be reason for a reader to question whether a problem might exist
in the future. _

Financial statements form only a part of the finandal reporting of an organization. Other
important sources of financial information include annual reports, budgets and funding
proposals. Readers wanting more information than that contained in the organization’s financial
_ statements will often be able to obtain it by referring to these other sources.

Financial statanents are used to provide information about:

what the organization owns and what it owes;
* . the changes over the period in what the organization owns and what it owes;
*  whether the organization operated at a surplus or a deficit over the period.

Owned or Owing

The statement of financial position (a.k.a. balance sheet or statement of net worth) contains
information at a specific date - typically the fiscal year end of the organization - about;

* what the organization owns and what is owing to it (assets);

* what the organization owes (liabilities). This includes amounts owed to others
or amounts to be spent on the operations of a future period (e.g. deferred
grants). :

* the accumulated surplus or deficit from prior years’ operations (net
assets/deficit). The difference between the assets and the liabilities is the
amount of the net assets/deficit.

The statement prdvides a measure of the net worth or solvehty of the organization. This
snapshot of assets, liabilities and accumulated surplus (i.e., net worth) usually includes a
comparative snapshot as at the prior year end.



Surplus or Deficit

b

The statement of operations (a.k.a. statement of revenue and expenses) contains information
regarding:

« how much revenue was earned by the organization during the year. This will
include both cash received and revenue earned but not yet collected (i.e.
amounts receivable). )

« the expenses the organization incurred such as those for wages, operating
costs, etc. )

« the difference between the revenue and expenses, which is the organization’s
surplus or deficit for the year.

If the staternent of financial position presents a snapshot at the beginning and end of the fiscal
year, the statement of operations paints a picture of the year itself.

The statement of operations contains information concerning where revenues come from and
how they were spent. The excess (or deficiency) of revenues over expenses is the number that
people refer to as the "bottom-line". This number tells readers whether the organization was
able to match its expenses with revenue or if expenses outweighed revenues during the year.

Changes in What is Owned and Owed

The statement of cash flows provides information about how the organization generated and
spent its cash during the year. It compliments the first two statements. The statements of
financial position and operations provide a snapshot of the financial posttion of an organization
at a spedific date and a sense of its economic performance over the period but do not always
- dearly show why there were changes in assets, liabilities, and net assets. For example, an
" organization receiving a capital donation to buy a piece of land or a building would not normally
reflect that donation as revenue. Instead, it would be shown as an increase in capital assets on
the statement of finandial position and, typically, shown as a direct increase in net assets.
Another example is that of repayment of debt. If an organization pays off a bank loan, that
paymient is not an expense. It would result in a direct reduction of a liability. In both of these
cases the transactions would be disdosed in a statement of cash flows.

Note that for many small operations, the changes in an entity’s assets, liabilities, and net assets
can generally be seen from the statement of operations. As a result, many not-for-profit
organizations without significant debt, capital assets and deferred grant balances often do not
prepare a statement of cash flows.

What Goes into Financial Statements

As discussed above the objecti;re of financial statements is to provide users with an idea of an
entity’s financial position, its economic performance over a period and its changes in assets,
liabilities, and net assets. We will now take a detailed look at the more common categories that

appear in financial statements.

Assets

The first section of assets represents the current assets. Current assets comprise cash and other
assets (e.g. short-term investments and accounts receivable) that would usually be converted
inito cash in the normal course of opérations within the year.



Cash

o
Cash includes petty cash on hand, and cash in bank and credit union accounts. Note that the
cash balance is adjusted for:

»  cheques written before the year end that are not cashed until after the year
end

+ cash deposited in the bank after the year end that was received by the
organization before the year end.

These two adjustments.ensure that the cash balance represents the actual cash on hand and
available to the organization at the reporting date.

Short-term investments’

Short-term investments include items such as term -deposits, guaranteed investment
certificates, mutual fund money market holdings, and, in some cases stocks and bonds. It is
important to note that, as with all other assets, these investments are recorded at their original
cost to the organization. Subsequent gains are not recorded in the accounts. The notes to the
statements often disclose market value of the investments. You should read the notes to see if
the market value disclosed is greater than or less than the cost amount of the investments
recorded in the statements.

If, in the eyes of the organization, an investment has suffered a permanent impairment in value
(i.e., has dedlined in value below the original cost and the value is not expected to recover)
then the securities will be written down in the financial statements to the now lower market
value. Subsequent increases in market value will not be recognized in the statements.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are amounts owing to the organization at a specific date for services
rendered and goods sold. Examples of accounts receivable are amounts owed by parents for
child care fees and workshop fees earned by an -organization but not received until after the
Year end. Accounts receivable may also include other items due to the organization such as GST
refunds, interest receivable on investments and grants receivable from govermment
organizations for services rendered by the organization prior to the reporting date.

An important question to ask regarding accounts receivable is: "Will the amounts receivable
actually be received by the organization?* An implicit assumption in financial statements is that
the amounts included in accounts receivable will be recovered by the organization. Amounts on
the organization’s books that are not expected to be recovered are often either fully written off
or are offset by an allowance for uncollectible debts.

Inventory

Inventory comprises goods and supplies (assets) held by the organization for resale. An implicit
assumption in financial statements is that inventory can be sold at an amourit at least equal to
its cost to the organization. A question to ask regarding inventory is: “Is it saleable in the
foreseeable future?" If the answer is no, then the inventory should not be included as an asset
in the financial statements. '



Capital assets -

Capital assets are assets held for a period longer than one year and comprise items such as
land, buildings, furniture and other equipment. Capital assets are held for use by the
organization in delivery of its services anid are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of
operations. The financial statements reflect capital assets at their original purchase price. The
statements do not attempt to disclose fair market value or disposable value or any type of value
other than cost. Consequently, while capital assets may be listed at Rs.20,000, that is not to say
that they could be sold for Rs.20,000 or that it would cost-Rs.20,000 to replace them. The
information disclosed is that the assets originally cost the organization Rs.20,000.

Accumulated amortization

Financial statements disclose not only the cost of capital assets but also an item called
accumulated amortization. Assets are usually recorded as an expense over a number of years
(e.g. three years or five years). This is the accountant’s way of trying to spread the cost of an
asset over its useful life. Accumulated amortization is the accounting term that explains how
much of the assets have been recorded as an expense since their purchase. The excess of
original cost over accumulated amortization of capital assets is termed "net book value". The

net book value of capital assets represents the remaining value of assets to be written off as an

expense in future years.

Note that land s not amortized as the usefulness of fand generally does not diminish with time .
in the same way that, for example, a computer does.

Analysis of 'assets
When reading a balance sheet we recommend that you focus on the following:

« collectability of accounts receivable (i.e. will amount recorded actually be
received);
o the difference between the market value of securities/investments and their

recorded cost;
4f inventory on hand is saleable in the foreseeable future;
whether all significant capital assets of the organization are recorded on the

balance sheet
« whether the organization plans to or needs to replace capital assets in the

future . )

Liabilities

Like assets, liabilities are divided into current and long-term categories. Current liabilities are

those which are owed and due to be paid within one business cycle, usually a year, such as -

accounts payable and accrued liabilities and deferred grant revenue. Al other liabilities to be
paid over a period longer than a year are classified as long-term liabilities.

»



Accounts payable and accrued fiabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are obligations that have been incurred by the
organization before the year end but have not yet been paid. The following are examples of
some of the more common armounts payable:

* unpaid salaries and wages at the year end where the pay date does not fall on
- the year end date ,
* vacation pay eamned but not taken by employees as at the year end
* goods and services such as utilities, food and professional fees that have been
purchased and/or consumed by the year end but have not yet been paid for.

Liabilities are generally recorded at the amount that the organization expects to pay to
discharge them. If a potential liability exists but it cannot be valyed (e.g., in the case of an
outstanding item such as a lawsuit whose outcome is in doubt at the year end) then this
situation will often be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. This is yet another
example of why you should always refer to the notes when looking at a set of financial

statements,

Deferred grant revenve

‘Deferred grant revepue represents grants received by an organization before the year end

where the related expenses have not yet been incurred. As an example consider an organization
that receives a salary grant in advance of the year end for salaries to be incurred the following
year. The unspent portion of the grant at the year end would bereoordedasdeferred.grant
revenue:in the liabilities section of the financial statements,

Loans, mortgages and other debt -

This caption represents the amount of debt, such as mortgages and Multi-year bank loans,
owed by the organization to third parities. Again, reading the notes is very important for
understanding the impact the debt will have on the future cash flows of the organization. The
notes will generally disclose the loan payment terms, interest rates, and, very importantly, the
security pledged by the organization. For example, if an organization pledged its accounts
receivable and inventory as collateral for a. bank loan then this will be disclosed in the notes to
the finandal statements.

Analysis of liabilities

« Compare current liabilities with current assets. The organization shouid have
sufficient current assets (the sum of cash, inventory, accounts receivable, etc.)
to cover its current liabilities, If it does not then you should question how the
_organization will pay the amounts owing in the upcoming year, ~

*  Review the terms and conditions of loans and other debt to determine whether
-any large payments are due in the near future. '

* Read the notes to the financial statements to determine whether there are any
potential liabilities that could not be quantified as at the year end.



Net Assets

The next major caption in a balance sheet is that of net assets. This caption often appear?”as
accumulated surplus (deficit), net worth, or funds. Regardiess of the name, in all cases it
represents the excess of the book value of what an organization owns (assets) less the book

value of what the organization owes (liabilities).

Net assets are often subdivided based on the nature of the restrictions placed on the net assets
by an organization's donors and funders. There are four common subdivisions of net assets:
restricted, designated, invested in capital assets and unrestricted.

Restricted

This caption reflects aséets given to the organization on which the funder or donor has placed
explicit restrictions. The organization has a duty to use these funds in accordance with the
specified purposes or the funds could have to be returned to the contributor. An example would
be where donations have been given specifically to fund the purchase of a building. The
organization must use the moneéy to buy a building; it could not turn around and spend the
money to cover operating or other non-building expenses.

Designated amounts

. Designated amounts usually represent amounts the organization has set aside to fulfill a specific
function. Designated amounts come to the organization without restrictions on their use but are
subsequently designated for a specified use by the Board of Directors. A common example
would be where an organization notionally or physically sets aside an amount to purchase a
new asset such as a building or to repair or renovate an existing asset such as a playground.
Designated amounts could also be set aside for possible costs in the event of wind up of an
organization or to provide a cushion in the event of unexpected finandal requirements.

It is important to note that, unlike funds with externally imposed restrictions, the requirements
to spend designated amounts can be changed by the organization withott the funds having to
be returned to anyone. ‘ :

Invested in capital assets

This amount represents the net book value of capital assets in the financial statements less the
value of liabilities related to those assets. For example, if an organization had a building with a
net book value of Rs.1,000,000 against which there was a Rs.250,000 mortgage then the
amount reflected as "invested in capital assets” would be Rs.750,000.

Unrestricted funds

What is left over after restricted, designated and funds invested in capital assets are so called
“unrestricted" funds. These are funds that can be used for the general operating purposes of
the organization. Note that even though use of the funds is classified as unrestricted they must
" otill be used in accordance with the legal mandate of the organization as set out in its

incorporating statutes or similar documents.



The amount of unrestricted funds provides an indication of the solvency of an organization;
solvency being the ability of an- organization both to fulfil its current obligations and fund its
future operations for the foreseeable future. For many not-for-profit arganizations the
combination of the unrestricted and designated net asset items should typically be within the
range of one to three months of operating expenses. This is only a very general guideline,
There are circumstances that would warrant a level of unrestricted and designated net assets
outside of that range. Circumstances include extreme financial uncertainty (which could justify a
level of net assets in excess of the range) or, on the other hand, excellent financial stability
(which could justify a smaller than average level of net assets),

Analysis of net assets .

+ Compare restricted net assets with the level of current assets less current
liabilities. Does-the organization appear to have sufficient resources to cover
these specified spending requirements?

* Review the total of unrestricted and designated surplus amounts. Compare this
total with total operating expenses. If the combined surplus is less than a
month's worth of operating expenses or more than three months' worth of
operating expenses then you might question whether the surplus is
appropriate,

Revenues

Revenues represent the earnings of an organization during the reporting period. For example,
an organization entitied to receive Rs.1,000 in a year for providing services to its community
would report the Rs.1,000 as revenue. It is important to note that the revenue would be
recorded whether or not the organization actually received the cash. Note that any revenue
eamed by not received at the reporting date would be included in accounts receivable under
current assets in the balance sheet. -

Donation revenue

Donation revenue usually comprises donations actually received in the year. Donors do not
enter into a contract with the organization when making a donation. The revenue is, therefore,
generally only recognized in the reporting period in-which the donations are actually received.

Pledges to donate that have not yet been honoured by the donor at the year end are generally
not set up in the financial statements. Because the pledge agreement is not a legally
enforceable contract the organization has no legal way to enforce collection. You should read
the notes to the financial statements to see if the organization has a policy of recognizing as
revenue donations pledged but nét yet received at the year end.

Grant revenue

Grants, unlike donations, are generally characterized by a legally binding contract between the
funder and the organization. Grant revenue comprises funds earned by virtue of the
- organization carrying out programs specified by the funder in a grant contract. Revenue earned
does not necessarily equal cash received from funders during the year. For example, an
organization receiving Rs.10,00,000 in cash -before the year end for a program that was only
three quarters over by the year end would typically record grant revenue of Rs.7,50,000 in the
statement of operations. The remaining Rs.2,50,000 would be reflected as _deferred grant
revenue under the liabilities section of the statement of financial position. Consequently, grant
revenue, unlike donation revenue, reflects grants "earned” by an organiz\ation and not just cash
received. :

v,



Analysis of revenues
= Review changes in revenue from last year to this year. Management should be
able to explain significant changes if the reasons for those changes are not
evident from the financial statements themselves.
o Review accounts receivable in conjunction with revenue. A significant increase
in accounts receivable might indicate either problems with collectability of-
revenue or a significant increase in activity toward the end of the fiscal year.

Expenses

Expenses during the year represent costs incurred by the organization to carry out its services.
Again, as with revenue, it is important to note that expenses will include amounts for services
provided or goods recelved that have not yet been paid for by the organization at the reporting
date. Note that unpaid expenses will be reflected as part of accounts payable and accrued

liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages are typically the single biggest expenditure item for most not-for-profit
service-based organizations. Personnel related expenses should include the amount of any pay
equity obligation for the year whether or not the organization has actually paid staff their pay
equity entitlement. Organizations should also include the expense of unpaid vacation pay over

the period if this is a significant item.

Analysis of expenses

e Compare the change in expenses from last year to this year. Review the notes
to see if explanations for significant differences are noted.

e Review the notes to the financial statements to determine whether there are
potential expenses that have not been recorded because the amounts were not

reasonably determinable at the year end.

Statement of Cash Flows

This brings us to a review of the statement of cash flows. This statement is a very important
one for organizations with a significant amount of deferred revenue, long-term debt and capital
assets, The statement of cash flows categonzes and summarizes the actual cash receipts and
cash disbursements for the year. Unlike the statement of operations, this statement excludes
the effect of amounts receivable and amounts payable by the organization at the year end. The
statement disdoses, among other items, cash spent for purchase of capital assets together with
cash spent to retire debt.

Cash transactions occurring in the year are typically divided into two captions:

Cash from operations

This caption includes cash received and cash spent during the year on an organization’s
operations. For example, if an organization receives a Rs.10,00,000 grant before year end but
only spends Rs.7,50,000-of it by the year end then the statement of cash flows will reflect the
full Rs.1,000,000 grant receivable under the caption cash received from operations. Cash used
for operations will show the Rs.7,50,000 in cash spent. '



Financing and investing

This caption includes cash received from and cash
marketable securities, equipment and land and bui
statement of operations as they result from an exc
an investment) and are, therefore, not expenses.
from or paid to reduce debt. For example, if an
building, then the full amount of the Rs.2,50,000

as a building purchase.

Analysis of statement of cash flows

Take net cash actually received or spent on operations from the statement of
cash flows and' compare it with the surplus or deficit for the year as recorded in
the statement of operations. The two amounts should be similar unless
liabllities or receivables have changed significantly over the year. If the two
amounts do not closely correlate then ask why. Understanding a discrepancy is
espedially important when an organization with a healthy excess of revenue
over expenses has received significantly less cash from operations. ‘The
disaepancymlghtindiatecashﬂowproblemsmatoouldleadtoﬁnandal
difficulties.

paid out for investments in the year such as
Idings. These items would not appear in the
hange of one asset for another (i.e. cash for
The statement also includes cash received
organization paid Rs.2,50,000 to purchase a
would appear in the statement of cash flows
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Working Capital : An Overview
What is Working Capital
Every enterpﬁse has to arrange for adequate funds for meeting day-to-day
expenditure apart from investments in fixed assets. Working capital-is the flow of ready
funds necessary for working of the enterprise. It consists of funds invested in current .
assets or those assets which in the ordinary course of business can be turned into cash
within a brief period without undergoing diminution in value and without disruption of

the organization. Current liabilities are those intended to be paid in the ordinary course

of business within a short time. Thus Net Working Capital = Current Assets — Current

Liabilities.
Purpose of Working Capital

1. To meet the cost of inventories, raw materials purchases, work-in-process.
finished goods, etc.
2.  To pay wages and salaries.

" 3. To meet overhead cost, factory cost, office and administration cost, taxes etc.

4, To meet selling and distribution expenses, advertising, packing etc.
Factors Governing Wbrking Capital

Cost of Raw Materials

Quantity and Value of Stocks
Duration of Manufacturing Period
Payment of Wages

Sales Turnover

C.reditv or Cash Sales and Purchases
Seasonal Variations

Type of Business

IR R PN

Banking Connections

Growth and Expansion

et
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Adequacy of Working Capital

" Working capital or investment in current assets is a must for the purchase of raw
materials, for meeting the day-to-day expenditure on salaries, wages, rents,
advertising etc., and for maintaining the fixed assets. Large scale investment in fixed
capital is often determined by a relatively small amount of current assets. The heart
of industry, working capital, if weakthe business cannot prosper and survive.
although there may be a large investment of fixed assets. Inadequate as well as -
redundant working capftal is dangerous for the health of industry, “Inadequate
working capital is disastrous; whereas redundant working capital is a criminal waste.”
Both situations are unwarranted in a sound organization. Adequacy of working

capital is the life blood and controlling nerve centre of a business.
Uses of Adequate Working Capital .

1. Cash Discount

Sense of Security and Confidence

N

Solvency and Continuous Production

Sound Goodwill and Increased Debt Capacity
Easy Loans from the Banks

Distribution of Dividend

Exploitation of Good Opportunities

Meeting Unseen Contingencies

Increase in Efficiency of Fixed Assets

¥ PN v AW

10. High Morale of Execu_tivés

11. Increased Production Efficiency




ASSESSMENT OF WORKING CAPITAL

Working capital is defined as the investment made by a business in
Current Assets, We can define Current Assets as those assets which satisfy three
tests:

1. They can be readily realised in cash without loss within one accounting
period (Usually of one year) or one operating cycle whichever is longer.

|

Assets which are readily realisable in cash without loss in value or which
assets in shortening the duration of the operating cycle or which change
.from during the operating cycle.

3. They have a hcféh turnover dependent upon the operating cycle of the
business. '

The turnover of current assets of a business depends upon the duration of
its operating cycle. The operating cycle is defined as the period between the date
of purchase of raw materials and the date the finished goods are sold and sale
proceeds realised in cash, firms which have trading (that is, purchase and resale
of the same goods without further processing) as their main function have the
quickest turnover of current assets at the other end of scale the turnover of
heavy engineering units is very slow and is in some cases (ship building units etc.)
not even once a year.

The source of funds for investment in current assets are provided
partly from short term borrowings or short liabilities called current
liabilities which are repayable within one accounting year (or one operating cycle
whichever is longer) and partly from surplus long term funds in the form of
deferred liabilities and owners’ equity. The investment of owned and other long
term funds in current assets is called Net Working Capital (NWC).

There are two ways of calculating net working capital (NWC) which can
be defined as the surplus long term funds left after meeting long term (or
permanent) assets. . A simple method of calculating NWC is by deducting the
monetary value of current liabilities from the monetary value of current assets.



REQUIREMENTS OF WORKING CAPITAL AND ITS M—'\NAGEMENT

S.K. ANAND

Working capital management is concerned with . the management of
Current assets. Since short term survival js a pre-requisite to long term success,
working capital management also forms an integral part of financial
management. M current assets are too adequate current assets jt may not be
meet current obligation. In addition to this efficient management of individual
assets such as inventory receivable and cash is also important. '

Working capital represents the capital invested in current assets viz. Cash,
marketable securities, debtors, inventory and others. Management of working
capital attains significant because it has operational implications for other non
finance departments such as production, marketing, personnel etc, Improper
and unplanned management of current assets will effect the smooth operations of
different departments. Enough liquidity and ability te meet payment to supplier
and other short terms needs ensures business solvency and smooth day to day
operations. ~ '

. Working capital or circulating capital or current assets form a sizeable
part of total investment. In practice, short term Sources are used for short-term
assets and they lose their identity fairly quickly, within a year. Here time valued
iS not the 'degisidn-variable, but the question of liquidity versus profitability and
the related risk plays an important role. '

The term current asset refers to those assets which can be turned into cash
within oneyear. The major current assets are inventories, accounts receiva bles,
marketable securities, and cash. Current liabilities are those liabilities which are
to be paid within a year out of the earnings of the concern. The major current
liabilities are accounts payable, bills, bank overdraft and outstanding expenses.
The goal of working capital management is to manage both current assets andg
current liabilities in such a way that it is able to fulfil its obligations and have a
satisfactory level of current assets. Each of the current assets must be managed
efficiently in order to avoid risk and maintain liquidity. The main theme of
working capital management is to have an optimum level of current assets, and
financing strategy to balance risk, liquidity and profitability.



Thus,

Current Assets -- Current Liabilities = Net Working Capital, which can
be cunsidered as the basis equation for working capital. or

Current Assets = Net Working Capital + Current Liabilities.

There are three major types of current assets viz. Cash and Marketable
Investments, Receivable and Inventories. It is from the sale or realisation of
these current assets that firm makes profits or incur losses. How much current
assets a firm in production needs is dependent upon seasonality of sales or
production. :

A firm facing peak sales/production cycles in an accounting cycles in an -
accounting period will maintain current assets at a higher level just before the on
set of its peak season that what it would be in the off-peak period. A firm having
no seasonal peaks and droughts will generally maintain a uniform level of
current assets. Every business has to maintain a minimum level of current assets
suited to its peculiar needs throughout the year. This minimum holding of
current assets is more or less on a long term basis and can therefore be termed as
“Permanent Current Assets” Permanent current assets are maintained for two

main reasons i.e. (i) to provide a safety cushion (ii) for meeting anticipated
increase in future needs.

Depending upon seasonality of operation, production schedule and
turnover, current assets over and above the permanent requirement . of the
business. The level of these assets keep on changing such current assets can be
termed as “Fluctuating or variable current assets™,

OPERATING CYCLE

The rotation or turnover of current assets of a firm depends upon the
duration of its operating-cycle. The operating cycle is defined as the period
between the date of purchase of raw materials and the date the finished goods
are sold and sale proceeds, realised. Firms which have trading (that is, Purchase
and resale of the same goods without further processing) as their main function
have the quickest turnover of current assets; at the other end of the scale, the
turnover of current assets of heavy engineering units is very slow and is in some
cases (ship building units etc.) not even once a year.



The duration of the operating cycle depends upon several variables :

a)  Average ordering period of raw materials

b) Period of processing

¢)  Average period required for packing and forwarding
d)  Average collection period

e) Economic forces of demand and supply, and

f)  The firm’s policy in the above matter.

DIAGRAM
Purchase— Processing-————-—-—
| | o | ?
Cash | Finishing
? ' : ?
?———Sales ? Packing Forwarding ? ——

It is apparent that in order to keep investment in current assets to a
minimum level, the operating cycle should be as short as possible. The
management accountant of a firm or company, therefore, tries to optimise the
time taken by each component of the operating cycle to the extent the costs are
controllable. Next, he has to examine the inventory and selling policy of the firm
to determine whether lower inventories and quicker collections than hitherto,
are economically feasible. '

~ IMPORTANCE OF ADEQUATE WORKING CAPITAL:

Adequate working capital is essential for the successful working of any
business concern. Abundance of working capital in excess of firm’s requirement
will adversely affect return on investment and lead to its poor employment.
Paucity of working capital, on the other hand, will render working of the
concern extremely difficult and come in the way of timely discharge of business
obligations. Thus, every enterprise must maintain adequate working capital to
provide for operating expenses and meet it current liabilities promptly. The
advantages that follow from the maintaining of adequate working capital are :-

r
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1) to help, maintain solvency of enterprise by providing for continuous flow
of production. ’

2) to. maintain and improve it§ reputation by prompt payments to supplier
of raw materials and others;

3) to avail of cash discount reduces cost of working capital;

4) to arrange for seasonal loans from banks on favourable terms;

S) to suecessfully face business crisis in periods of-emergency;

6) to pay dividends regularly and thus enjoy a favourable market to raise
additional funds in future; and- '

7 to ensure regular supply of raw materials.

FACTORS INFLUENCING WORKING CAP[TAL REQUIREMENTS

[o]

There is no standard formula to decide the amount of working capital
needed by a concern.. It will differ from industry to industry and even from
company to company. The nature of business and its volume are two
fundamental factors influencing working capital. For example, a manufacturing
concern requires less working capital compared to a banking company -whose
primary requirement is working capital. However, following are the important
factors affecting the amount of working capital required by an institution:

1. Nature of business : Nature of business carried out by the firm affects the

amount of working capital required. Thus, a banking company requires

~ more working capital whereas a transport firm hardly requires any
working capital. |

2. Scale of operation : Other things remaining the same, a big concern
requires more working capital than a small firm. Day to day operating
expenses of a big concern are much more than those of a small firm. “

3. Length of manufacturing period : When it takes a longer time to
manufacture the product of a firm, working capital requirements go up.
This happens because during this longer manufacturing period the firm
must pay its operating expenses whereas sale proceeds are realised after
completion of the product.




Technique of production used : A firm using capital intensive technique

of production will require less working capital than a firm which is in the
sume industry but using labour intensive technique of production. In the
latter case, wage bill is more thus necessitating increase in working capital
requirements. '

Internal efficiency : Efficiency in management of cash, inventories and
other current items tends to reduce working capital requirements.
Slmllarly, internal efficiency with regards to other operational areas of the
firm also influences the amount of working capital required by it.

Terms of purchase and sale : The place given to credit by the enterprise
in its dealings with suppliers and buyers also influences the amount of
working capital, requlred by it.

Seasonal variations : The need and adequacy of working capital is
further determined by nature of sale, variation in sales indifferent seasons
and reigns. Seasonal variation in sales can best be witnessed in the case of
cotton and woollen garments, refrigerator, i ice and ice-cream, etc. In fact,

where seasonal fluctuation is little, industries require a continuous and
definite flow of working capital. In other cases, the need and volume of
working capital fluctuates with seasonal variations.

The holding of current assets will depend on several factors:-

B =

(¥
.

Duration of the operating cycle.

Demand and supply position for each item.

Cost factor will determine how much the firm stocks at a time,

Seasonality of operations will obviously dictate the amount of current
assets to be held.

The future prospects of the concern will also help in determining how
much to invest in current assets.
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Business Wor_kin cle

Business operations involve continuous interaction amongst various financial
factors. The financial structure of any business can be classified under the following
heads:

i) Capital, P&L A/c balance
ii)  Term Liabilities

ili)  Fixed Assets

iv)  Current Liabilities

V) Current Assets

In the normal course of business, the levels and constituents of current liabilities
~and current assets are constantly changing; whereas capital, term liabilities and fixed
assets show very little variation as a rule during the financial year. To clanfy the matter,
let us consider the current assets first. ’

Current assets normally consist of stocks, debtors, cash, etc. Stock for industrial
concerns may be segregated into raw material, stock in process (sip) and finished goods.
The individual items constituting raw material, sip and finished goods are constantly
changing throughout the year. Raw materials get consurned and are converted into sip.
Raw material consumption leads to replacement with new raw materials. On the one
hand, raw materials are being converted into sip and on the other; sip is being converted

into finished goods.

But conversion of raw materials into finished goods is not the end of the business
process. The finished goods are sold either on cash or on credit basis or a combination of
both. The debtors have to be realized and converted into cash, which is used to pay off
existing creditors for goods and expenses. :Hence, the cash balance as also the level and
constituents of stocks and debtors are constantly changmg Consequently, such assets are
known as circulating assets.

While capital, term loans and fixed asseis are the basics on which the entire
business organization rests, it is the current assets and current liabilities which contribute
to the continuance of the organization. In other words, the current assets and current
liabilities work together and produce business results. Hence, the current assets and
current liabilities together are considered as working capital and the difference between
the two is known as ‘net working capital’. It should be borne in mind that current assets
should always be in excess of current liabilities. Similarly, if the current liabilities are
excess of current assets, the working capital will be negative, and no organization can
continue for long time with the negative working capital.

The working cycle can be pictorised for:

1) traders
i1) industry
111) others

16



A trader buys goods partly on credit and partly on cash, and incurs some expenses
in running the business. Some of the e€xpenses are defrayed in cash while others result in
current liabilities to be met in due course. Depending upon the type of trade carried on
the proportion between cash and credit sales will vary. The cash sales will result in
immediate inflow of cash, but the credit sales will be first reflected in debtors, Only on
payment by the debtors will the sales be reflected as inflows of cash.

Working Capital Cycle: Traders

Purchases/Creditors
(D

Profit \

Cash W/C CYCLE Stock
@ (TRADER) 2

Sales/Debtors
3

from the cash generated by sales. This circle of movement from creditors-sales-debtors-
cash-creditors, is known as the working capital cycle. With the inflow of cash and

Payment to creditors, the new cycle of purchase on credit to final realization of cash from
-debtors commences again. : '

At this stage, it will be noticed that the sale proceeds have been received in cash,
which has been used to pay the creditors. - But the entire sale proceeds are never used to

sale and realization of debtors, there will be an inflow of cash and the cash pool will be
augmented with the undrawn profit.

So the faster the working cycle rotates, the greater will be the profit. In other
words, it is for the businessman to make every effort to ensure as rapid a turnover of
stocks and debtors as possible. ‘ :

&



Even in this case, the cash obtained from debtors represents cost of raw material
plus processing costs plus overheads plus profit. So after paying creditors, there should
be a balance of cash Tepresenting profits. It is obvious that the interval between
purchasing raw materials and the interval between purchasing raw materials and the
ultimate receipt o sale proceeds in cash, should be as short as possible. In other words,
the cycle should rotate as fast as possible. ' ' ,

. The stock in trade of profession like doctors, lawyers, accountant, etc., consists of
intapgible assets, viz., their skills. But normally, they require premises from which they
can carry on the activities. Apart from premises they require furniture, equipment like
fax, computer, etc., which they acquire by taking loans from financial institutions.

Working Capital Cycle - Professionals

PIOﬁt \

Cash W/CCYCLE . Debtors
€) (PROFESSIONAL) @

Creditors for Expenses
M

Apart from availing term loans for acquiring assets as above, they incur routine

expenses for telephone, electricity, conveyance, travel, membership fees for professional
bodies, etc. ‘

~ So, it can be seen that though professionals do not buy goods for resale or raw
materials for processing into finished goods, yet they do incur liabilities. For acquiring
fixed assets like premises, equipment, car, etc., they avail of term loans repayable in
installments. As mentioned earlier, term loans do not constitute part of the working
capital, but installments of term loans failing due during the financial year represent
current liabilities and, hence, form part of the working capital.

12



Working Capital Cycle: Industry

Purchases/Creditors
(1)

Profit

N

Cash ' W/C CYCLE v Raw materia]
3 (INDUSTRY) )
~ Sales/Debtors
(5)
' Finished
° Goods (4)

The starting point is the acquiring of raw materials mainly on credit. The raw
materials undergo processing before the final product emerges. The process time varies
from product to Product and on the process adopted. It is only on the completion of the
process cycle that the finished product is available for sale.

%



- A professional tenders his services to his clients and either submits his bill as per
terms mutually agreed upon, or receives cash payment. But in the case of professionals
the liabilities, both term as well as current, are frequently in excess of debtors. This
because a professional takes time to settle down and build up a remunerative practice.

The basic principle of trying to rotate the working capital cycle as rapidi)% as

possible holds good even in this case, or rather more so as his existence depends upon
constantly trying to enhance his earnings.
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GOOD BUSINESS PRACTICES FOR A SUCCESSFUL BUSINESS
* Deepa Srivastava

Commencing a business is easy but managing it is challenging. Anyone can
own a business but only a few can make it thrive. One cannot own a business and
expect it to run successfully if good business practices and strategies are not in place.
As times change, effective business strategies change as well. What was effective

several years ago may no longer work in today’s business word.
What Is Best Practice -

A best practice is a method or technique that has consistently shown results
superior to those achieved with other means, and that is used as a benchmark. In
addition, a best practice can evolve to become better as improvements are discovered.
Best practice is considered by some as a business buzzword, used to describe the
process of developing and following a standard way of doing things that multiple
organizations can use. Best practices are used to maintain quality as an alternative to
mandatory legislated standards and can be based on self-assessment or benchmarking.

Good operating practice is a strategic management term. More specific uses of
the term would include good agricultural practices, good manufacturing practice, good
laboratory practice, good distribution practice etc.

5 Key Business Tenets

1. Anticipate Change: A Continual look at the business model and anticipating

how the “market” (internal and external to the business) is likely to change
and affect it, then planning ahead for change enables the shift to meet the

changing “market” before it is too late.

* Chief Director, TOPIC Institute, Gurgaon

.



2. Keep abreast of new technology: This includes both the technology as well as

the tools we must employ to address customer needs most effectively, i.e.
repeatedly deliver quality results in a timely and cost effective manner. A
need based and timely training facilitates this updation. »

3. Be a partner to our customers: Establish and maintain an excellent working

relationship with our customer decision makers. Put ourselves in the shoes
of our customer and ask what he or she expects from an excellent, reliable
business partner by focusing their perceived and real needs. We must always
understand the customers’ needs and be prepared to meet them. By keeping
up to date with our customers’ daily needs, we can be responsive to
immediate changes.

4, Be able to supply significant value add: This will given an extra édge and cost

to the business in terms of profitability as well as developing customer loyalty
to our business.
5. Continuously optimize our business model: Regularly review our business

model and look for ways to be more efficient. Look for ways to remove
redundant activities and “right size” the results delivered. Find ways to
reduce the number of steps in our processes or other unnecessary overhead.

All of these tenets are good common sense business practices that are basic to
survival and profitability. [n the heat of daily work, however, we often forget that we
need to continuously work at them. So, they are valuable guideposts to assure

continued success in our work.
Good Business Practices in Cooperatives -

A cooperative is a business enterprize owned and democratically controlled by
the people who use its services and whose benefits are derived and distributed
equitably on the basis of use. The user-owners are called members. They benefit in
two ways from the cooperative. First, the more they use the cooperative, more
services they receive. Second, earnings are allocated to members based on the

amount of business they do with the cooperative.



In many ways, cooperatives resemble other businesses. They have similar
physical facilities, perform similar functions and must follow sound business
practices. They are usually incorporated-under state law granting them the right to do
business. The organizers draw up bylaws and other necessary legal papers.
Members elect a board of directors. The board sets policy and hires a manager to
run the day-to-day operations. But in some ways, cooperatives are distinctly
different from other businesses. These differences are found in the cooperative’s
purpose, its ownership and control, and how benefits are distributed. They are
reflected in cooperative principles that expléin the unique aspects of doing business

on a cooperative basis.

Some cooperatives like AMUL, IFFCO etc have become larger, partially in
response to growing concentration among their competitors and the firms their
members must deal with. They have adopted modem management techniques and
sophisticated processing, distribution and marketing methods. Today rural and
urban residents use cooperatives to acquire consumer services such as housing,
credit and other financial services, groceries, education and telecommunications.
Cooperatives remain a major component of the food and agriculture industry, also
emerging a via media to help people provide services for themselves in virtually all
segments of the economy.

* Certain business practices as mentioned below have/may be developed that

implement and facilitate the basic principles that govern the cooperatives and
differentiate them from other forms of business.

The Patronage Refund System

While cooperatives strive to return earnings to members, this can’t be done on a
transaction by transaction basis. Rather, cooperatives may charge competitive
prices for supplies and services rendered to members and in due course generate
sufficient income to cover costs and meet continuing needs for working capital. The
earnings of a previous year may be returned to the patron members as cash and/or
equity allocations on the basis of how much business each patron did with the



cooperative during the year. These distributions can be termed as patronage
refunds/dividends. For example, if a cooperative has earnings of Rs. 2 lakhs from
business conducted in a year, and Amit .does 2 percent of the business with the
cooperative, he receives a patronage refund of Rs.4000/-, (Rs.2,00,000/- X 0.02). This
allows the cooperative to return margins to members on an annual basis, consistent with
standard accounting conventions and without regard to how much was earned on each

transaction.

Limited Return on Capital

Members form a cooperative to get a service-source of supplies, market for products
or performance of specialized functions-not for a monetary return on capital investment.
Many cooperatives don't pay any dividends on capital, others pay a modest return, in
line with state statutes. Limiting returns on equity supports the principle of distributing
benefits proportional to use. It also discourages outsiders from trying to wrest control of
a cooperative from its members and operate it as a profit-generating concern for their

own vested benefits.

Cooperation among Cooperatives

Many cooperatives, especially local associations, are too small to gather the
resources needed to provide all the services their members want. By working with other
cooperatives-through federated structures, joint ventures, marketing agencies in
common, and informal networks-they pool personnel and other assets to provide such
services and programs on a collaborative basis at lower cost. This permits members of
local cooperatives to participate in owning and managing fertilizer plants, food
manufacturing facilities, wholesale grocery and so forth. Benefits flow back through the
local cooperatives to the individual members.

Harmonious inter and intra team relations

A cooperative is owned and controlled by the people who use its services. Thus the
various persons affiliated with a cooperative must work even more closely together.
Members-Customers service and satisfaction are the driving forces behind a
cooperative, not maximizing return to investors. These take on a highly personal tone
when the owners and directors, in their role as users, have regular contact with



management and staff. Cooperatives depend on a coordinated team consisting of four
elements-members-owners, board of directors, the managers and other responsible
employees. Each part of the team has its own distinctive duties. Success is based on
intelligent and active cooperation and each group carrying its load.

These principles and practices have survived and flourished through 150 years of
continuous evolution in the business world. They remain the foundation that supports

the distinctive cooperative method of doing business

Members’ Orientation-Key to Success of a Cooperative

Members are the foundation of the coopefative. They organized it. Their needs are
the reason for.its existence. Their support through patronage and capital investment,
keeps it economically healthy and their changing requirements shape the cooperative’s
future. Statutory law and the basic legal documents of a cooperative by laws, and
contracts between the cooperative and its members-give the members the tools to
control the cooperative and the duty to use those tools for their mutual benefit.

Members have general responsibilities toward their cooperative. Unlike the passive
investor in a general business corporation, the member-owner-user of a cooperative
must patronize and guide the venture for it to succeed. Elected Management,
employees and advisers need to understand these member obligations and help
members fulfill them.

» Patronize the cooperative-Members must make a conscious decision to be

committed to the cooperative, even when short-term prices or services may be better
elsewhere. If members don't want to use the cooperative, the need for it must be re-
examined.

* Be informed about the cooperative-To carry out their other duties, members must

know what the cooperative is about; what it can do for them; its purpose, objectives,
policies; and the issues it faces. They can obtain information through annual
meetings, reports and newsletters, and from talking to the manager, staff, directors
and other members. To effectively exercise their right of ownership, a member
needs a good understanding of the present situation and projected future operations.



Be conscientious when selecting and evaluating directors-Members select from

among their peers individuals with the best judgment and business management
skills to represent them in management affairs as the cooperative’s board of
directors. Loyalty, integrity, the ability to make wise business decisions and
willingness to serve are neceésary characteristics for board members.

Provide necessary capital-Members must provide the equity financing their

cooperative needs for acquiring inventory, facilities, services and working capital.
This is done initially through the purchase of share or a membership. If the
cooperative loses money, members have the same obligation to share those
losses as they do the earnings.

Evaluate performance of the cooperative-Members should examine the annual

report and observe whether the cooperative is meeting their needs. If they are
dissatisfied with cooperative performance, they should share their concemns with
the Board of Directors. They should also express support for things the

cooperative is doing well.

Similarly Secretary and other employees should understand the purpose and

objectives so that they can help improve member relations, the cooperative's image

and the general public’s understanding of cooperatives.

Ways to Ensure Success For Business

Very good business practices encompasses coming up with clever decisions in
respect of our business functions whether or not it instantly makes income for the
enterprise or not. Every single part of the business adds up the victory or
collapse of the business.

Important parts of the business are best outsourced to a respected and efficient
service provider, like bookkeeping and accounting being one of the most
sensitive areas needs expert handling and only professionals can do that.

Part of the reason for the victory of the business is dependent on how they
handle other individuals within their industry. Regardless of whether they are
business associates, competitors or clients, everybody ought to be treated with
value. The competitors will constantly be in existence and we will not go far
when we set up bad competition. Therefore treat everybody fairly.



 Ethics is a critical consideration for business venture to succeed. When one is
ethical and fair, one basically aids the business achieve a good name and

reliability.

A few examples of Good Business Practices

» Developing business plans in consonance with the cooperative’s mission that
address changing economic, industry, and regulatory environments.

 Ensuring that unit business process activities are undertaken in such a way as to
be consistent with achieving unit strategic objectives.

» Assigning appropriate responsibility and authority to optimally achieve
organizational goals and objectives, operate efficiently, and comply with all
regulatory requirements: ‘ ‘

 Implementing practices that result in hiring qualified and competent employees.

» Clearly communicating to each employee his or her role, responsibilities, and
individual accountability within the unit.

» Ensuring that Elected Management, members and employees have the required
knowledge, experience, training, and support to successfully perform their duties.

» Ensuring that relevant organizational information is effectively communicated
upstream, downstream, and across all activities.

» Employing risk assessment methodologies in determining whether to proceed in
undertaking new projects, implementing business process improvements, or
pursuing other opportunities.

» Promoting an organizational culture that values continual improvement.

» Implementing monitoring mechanisms to assess the ongoing effectiveness of
business processes and modifying business processes to effectively respond to
internal and external changes or challenges.

Let us not forget that in order to make money and be successful in our business, it
takes efforts and ethics to begin with. After we have accomplished victory with our
business, excellent decisions on business strategies follow. Choices are before us.
Let us make right choices. '
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USE OF COMPUTERS IN MANAGING PROJECTS

In common with many business processes today, the management of projects
can benefit from using computer technology. A project is controlled and managed

through the collection and use of information to take decisions and software exists to

help the project manager in this process. -A wide range. of project management
software is available ranging from a modest investment to very expensive. The .
explosion in _g_rapﬁic interfaee_ programs has made the use of computers more
accessible to everyone, making the software easier to use and understand.

It is important to remerﬁber that computer software is a tool to help you
manage the .project from start to finish. It is natjust a planning tool, although this is a
popular misunderstanding. The critical path technlques today are developed to
enable you to plan, schedule and control vour project and computer software is
based on these ﬁmdamental processes. The modern computer gives you access to
some sophisticated techniques ae a serious or casual user in programs that until
recently were the domain of mformatlon syskems gurus. However, there is one thing

the oomputer cannot do for you

M i cannot review your wealth of expevience
(i)  Select appropnate information, make a |udgment and take the decision.

The computer can only take decision based on the information you input to

Jthe program if this data is wrong then the .resulting output is also at fault. Yet

because_lt comes from the computer people fall into the trap of befieving the output -
bece'us,ethe computer mustbe right. The critical problem is to make sure the correct

data is given to the computer initially which is easy always to enact.

" One of the most,valuable features of all project management software is the
speed-and ease of reporting a large amount of data is excellent formats. This makes
a significant contribution to reducing the time to take decisions in support of the
control process. Most software allows you to select the data you want to report and



design the formats to suit you particular needs.

WHAT CAN SOFWARE DO? |

_ Much of the processing of information in the derivation of a plan and schedule
can be effectively carried out with the advantage of rapid output.of the results. It is
quite common to find this software just being used to produce a Gantt chart at the
start of a project ‘A presentable chart, that looks good and isl easy to understand
-+ helps to explain to management and others what is intended to happen in a project.

" This is only the beginning but to go any further requnres an understanding of the

€<

more complex features of the software.

These programs are really a combination of a graphics, spreadsheet and
database program to make a complex operaﬁng system for managing all aspects of
‘the project. The graphics part produces the Gantt chart, the logic dlagram or PERT
chart and the graphs used for reporting. The spreadsheet part is used for the forms,

tables and reports produced using the available data. The database part stores and -

manipulates the data provided for calculation, using the spreadsheet section to insert
results int> the tables, charts and diagrams viewed on screen. This combinaﬁoh
gives the software a hUge range of features to assist the project -process. The
difficulty is the-learning curve to understand such complex software and remhember
how to use the many features without having to resort to the reference manual every

time.

During the early part of the project it is relatively easily to input the essential
planning data to generate a Gantt. Chart and insert the resources. You spend much
of you time becoming familiar with the software. Then you move into the execution
phase and ha\}e less time to use the program. You are probably only going to

update the schedule once a week or even less frequently and then the references

manual starts to become well thumbed. It is easy to forget how to use the many

features provided for control. unless you use them on a very regtjla'r basis. Time to

update is often a major aspect of usfng_software that is ignored in the plan. You

need more time than you expect to input the reported progress and update the

information stored in the program. This is even more of a problem of the team
2



members are hot involved or do not have familiarity with the software. If the
updating is completely your responsibility it is quite possible you will rapidly fall
behind with the inputting of informatioh. The program is then so out of data that it
has no added value for you and then acquires an unwarranted reputation. People
start to complain that it is too complex, time consuming and difficult to use.

So treat the s.oftware as a tool in your toolkit. If the tool fits the job in hand,
make good use of it but make sure everyone, in the team is given adequate training.
Not everyone is comfortable with using computers or complex software. If you
believe there is a value for your project encourage and facilitate the leaming -
process. Most software programs are designed around some fundamental features
that include : f |

e tabulating a list of tasks at different levels of the WBS (Work Breakdown
“Structure); '

e inputting duration data;

. inputting the dependency infbrmation;

. gcalwlat.ing the critical path and float data;

 deriving the Gantt charg;

o deriving the logic diagram or PERT chart;

o ir.iput,tiﬁg a list of resources; o

» assignment of resources by responsibility or capacity;

e inputting 6f_ cost data as resource cost rates and materials costs;

+ deriving budget and cost curves, wlcuiating eamned value,

. scheduiing the project based on the input data;

o ‘what-if analysis of is_sueé u'sfng the Gantt chart,

« reassignment of resources;

« identifying and corre&ting resource overloads;

« outputting a wide range of reports.
All programs handle the data in a slightly different way and include many

. other features fo allow the optimization of the schedule in detail.



Using a software program

Most programs give you a number of different ways to input mformatlon and

build the project plan. Each program gives you a recommended approach to use but
this is not restricted. Flexibility is important and you are certain to be more

comfortable with a program that works the way you think. The steps irivolved follow

~ asequence:

¢ Open a new project file.
« Insert project title, start date and project manager's name.

o Set up the master calendar giving public and organizational hohdays ,

« If possible, design the specific formats for the tables you require.
¢ Input the project organisation — th,é core team on a resource listing.

thewr available capacity for the project, including holidays.

e Input the list of key stages to a blank Gantt. Chart.

e Assign responsibilities for the key stages — select by responsibility; i capacity
is used the schedule is automatically adjusted when durations are added

~ unless more than one person is assigned. Beware shared responsibility

¢ Inputi the durations for each key stage.

o Input the dependencies between the key stages.

e Program calculates the critical path, the key stage start and finish times and
floats.

» Gantt chart produced, highlighting critical key stages.

e PERT Diagram produced.

e Table generated showing early and late start and finish times with a total
floats. '

e Gantt chart produged, highlighting critical key stages.

o PERT diagram produced.

e Table generated showing-early and late start and finish times with total float.

» Total project time is now available.

« Input cost data as resource cost rates and materials costs for key stages

4

Set up resource ¢alendars - one for yourself and each team member to show



~» Operating budget cumulative curve calculated.

You do not have to input cost data if cost control features are not used. This.
- process gives ybu the base plan ready for optimization using the approach
discussed earlier. Most programs use a default condition of ‘finish’ to ‘start' for all

dependencies. You have the option to:

» use an alternative condition -.‘start’ to 'start’ or ‘finish’ to ‘finish;

o ‘fix' a start or finish date - it cannot move under any circumstances and is
sdmetimes known as a ‘must date’;

» introduce ‘lags’ and ‘leads’ — with-caution.

The program alerts you to any resource overloads created in assignment by
capacity.. If a person is assigned to work when they are listed on their calendar as
‘not hsing available, or they are committed to an earlier assignment, two options are

avaiiable:

« assign another,
« extend the task duration on the schedule to a listed availability.

The consequence may be an extension of the project completion date and
further-optimization is necessary by reiteration at key stage or lower levels of the
plan. This is where the computer is powerful béwuse of its speed at looking at the
options available to take a decision. ‘What-if analysis ailow you to quickly review the
impact of moving or extending tasks, h"toving or adjusting resource assignments and
changing the plan. Always check the consequences of these reiterations — the
critical path may change. '

When you have an acceptable schedule freezes this as the baseline -for
control. Make sure everyc;ne is issued with copies of the detail and keep copies of
everything in th'ewproject file. Once you have frozen the base line it is prudent to
keep a copy of the project file under a separate name as a back-up in case someone

resets the baseline without your knowledge.



The next phase of the project, dbing the work, provides you with feedback of
what is happening. This data is inputted to the program using the ‘update mode’
where percentage completion is given to each active task up to the current date.
Remember that the task is regarded as linear and it is better to calculate the
percentage. Obtain the forecast of time required to compiete and décide if the task
duration is extended into the float zone or further. The task bar can when show a
true position, the percentage complete and the time to complete with a realistic

completion date.

Updating the schedule task by task takes time to accomplish and pfograms do
vary in the 'features they offer and restrictions built in-to make this process easy to
complete. Any conflicts concerning resource assignments that arise from updatmg
the progress are alerted, so you can take cordrective action. Then you can explore
the options available to review the impact on the rest of the outstanding work and

take informed decisions.

WHAT SOFTWARE DOES NOT DO

The computer software -works entirely on déta you supply. Intuitive decision
processmg is beyond its capability so there are some aspects of the work ofa :roject

that are enttrely dependent on people:

* deciding the deliverables and benefits;

* identifying tasks and key stages;

* deciding the dependencies between key stages and the tasks inside;
 deciding the resources available to work on the project;

‘s doing the project work;

* identifying risks to the project;

* ranking of risks and allocating responsibilities for managihg risks;

* reviewing the project risk log;

e deriving a milestone schedule;

* identifying issues ~ process and technical;

¢ problem-solving;



« action planning to solve problems;

o resolving conflicts;
« monitoring and tracking the pro;ect activities;

e measuring project progress;

o reporting project progress.

These activities represent the major part of the project activity so ’keeg the
project driving the software and do not allow the software to drive the project. The
document templates suggested for status reports, risk and issues management are
not included in most pro;ect software packages. You can easily construct these
" using existing word processors or spreadsheet programs. Experience with cost
control suggests that setting up cost data and records using a spreadsheet is easy to

accomplish, accurate and quickly updated.

Software cannot ever rep|a¢e the essential human inputs to project activity or the
building and motivation -of an effective team. The combined brain power and
experience of an effective team is far greater than the sun of the individual parts and
: surpasses the power of any computer sofiware for project management

SELECTING PROJECT SOFTWARE

Selecting software for project management is emotnve in most organizations.
Unless your organisation is very focused on project activity with a defined software
pollcy the selection process causes untold controversy and conflict. Everyone has
thelr own favorite package for the ‘work they do and even the same software is
configured to operate differently according to mdeuaI needs. Perhaps the
information systems departments will review available programs and make a
selection that becomes policy. Experienced people with a record of success
“managing projects are the best to review software and decide if it is a valuable tool
to make the job easier for the type of projects undertaken. Some packages are

particutarly suited to certain types of projects so selectlon should not be based on

~ price alone but include a review of:

o past track record of performance,
7



J éase of use;

. éompatibility with other software in use;

« - stand-alone or networked and availability;

o platforms available;

« features for planning and scheduling;

= features for control and Updating;

e quality and ease of reporting;

« networking features — paséwords, access restrictions, efc;
e training available;

« help line and back-up available.

Project software is complex so it is often the product of specialist suppliers,
rather than just the major software suppliers who are household names in the
industry. There is little evidence to showqthére are compatibility problems with such
specialist packages and many are availa’ble on demonstration disks.

. [If you are selecting a software package then seek expert help and review
- what is available. Compile a list of things-you want from the program then review the
feature lists to decide which program to put on test. Do not restrict this list too much,
As you gain in experierice and confidence you expect more from your software and a

change later is expens.ve.



| (i) -

(iii)

(UN

(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

- Software

Address

Soﬂwaré
Address

Software
Address

Software
Address

Software
Address

Software
Address

Software

 Address

soﬂware
Address

Projept Monitoring Software Packages

HTPM (Version 2.01) or later

Insoft, B4/144, Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi.

QWIKNET
IPMG, M-48, Greater Kailash-Il, Shopping

Centre, New Delhi.

PROMIS
IPMG, M-49, Greater Kailash-l, Shopping

Centre, New Delhi.

PRISM
Tata Consultancy, Gulam Bhawan,
Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Dethi. '

Project Management
Engineers India Ltd., EIL House, Bhikaji

| Cama Place, New Delhi.

COMDACE
ROLTA, M-76, Greater Kailash,
New Delhi-110048.

Project Management
MSLSS, 203-204, Saraswati House,
Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019.

Instaplan

- WIPRO System, 1107, Hemkunt Tower,

98, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019.



(i) - . Software

®)

(xi)

Address

Software

~ Address

Séﬂware
Address

PROMAN
M.N. Dastura Co.,

480, Amasanai Nandathan, Chennai-35.

Planner
Computronies, 37, Basant Lok,
Vasant Vihar, New Delhi.

‘PERT/CPM

RITES, Manager (EDP),
New Delhi HS, Bara Khamba Road,
Mew Delhi.
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Disbursement of
Assistance to Societies



DISBURSEMENT OF ASSISTANCE TO SOCIETIES

ICDP is aimed at overall development of cooperative in the project area.

. " The development is expected to be achieved by extending various kind of
-assistance and _supp;ort .The assistance to be provided to individual society has
to be need based. - For assessing the requirement of individual society, the
Project Implementing Team (PIT) has to undertake survey of each and every
society covered under the prbject The following aspects have to be taken into
consideration wh:le assessing the need and providing assistance to individual

_ societies.
1.  Business Plan

The business plin given in the project report are bésed on the sample survey
" eonducted by the consultants, and may not give the true picture. Therefore, so
as to assess the 1e.q,u:rement of individual societies, the PIT should prepare

- business plan for egch and every society keepmg in view the

a) Potential fOrdevelopment based on the area-proﬁle
-b) Nequ of members and the:r participation

c) Economic and socio-political enviroriment

d) Performance of the soc:ety

" The business plan so prepared should be realistic and achievable.

. 4/‘

2. Assessment of Reguifemer_n_ts;

Based o’ri the business plan of individual societies, the requirement of
' '_unfrastructuml facslmes margin money, training efc. can be assessed keeping in
view the facllm,es already available with the society.



21 I.nfrastructural Facilities

" The additional requirement of infrastructural facilities such as godowns,

procéssing units, transport vehicles, agricultural implements etc. should be

assessed keeping in view not only the facilities already available with the society
-and the business plan but also the availability of these facilities in the local area
| and the total demand for these faciliies. The unit cost may vary from the
nhormative cost given in the project on the local and time factor. Therefore, the

requirement of assistance for individual society has to be assessed keeping in

‘view the above factors rather than providing the assistance on pro-rata basis.

To ensure economy, the mfrastructural facilities such as godowns, safe

vaults, strong fooms, cash ccunters, fumiture and fixtures etc., as far as

ased by the beneficiary societies and not by any

~ possible, be constructedlpurch
however, render necessary guidance

- central agency of the state. PIA would,

- wherever required.

E 2.2 Margin Money

With a view to enable the societies to achieve their business projections,
-ising woiisig capital from banks should be assessed on a

‘margin money for 7+
e business plan and avallablhty of funds

case to case basis dependlnb upon th
‘with the society. Therefore, margin money assistance should be provided on

need basis rather than on pre-rata basis.

2.3. Manpower Development and Training

The Project Implementation Team would identify\ the specific training
requirements under the programines proposed in the project and would make
suitable arrangements to get the personnel in cooperative trained at the
identified and suitable training institutes. It would also ensure that Development
Officers also organize training and member education programme as stipulated

o e



in the project, adopting system approach to training. Such efforts should be

guided, planned, supervised and evaluated regularly.

3. Year-wise Phasing of Requirements

Based on the break-up of business plan, PIT  would undertake year-
wise phasmg of requirements and sanction financial assistance to individual
socuetles accordmgly The year-wise phasing so assessed by the PIT/PIA may
dlffer from the phasing in the sanction letter. NCDC would have no objection for
changing the year-wise phasing for any activity. However, NCDC should be kept

informed of such changes.

31 Ilnfrd Sector Adjustment

The chlef executive of the PIA may approve diversion/ reallocation/
escalation within the same sector upto 10% of the outlay approved in the project,

based on the merit of each case. However, such changes sheiid be intimated to

tre State Govt/RCS as well as to NCDC.
3.2 Inter Sector Deviations

For inter sector Deviations, NCDC's gpproval is tu pe obtained. A
proposal duly recornmended by the State Government, has trerefore, to be sent

to NCDC for approving such deviations.

33 Additionat Sub-Projects

The additional sub-projects may be incorporated under ICDP if the sub-

projects are viable and within the overall cost of project sanctioned. For

" including the additiona| 's.ub-projects under ICDP, prior approval of NCDC should

be obtained. E‘br'which, a proposal, dully recommended by the State Gowt.,

should be moved.



As a result of inclusion of additional sub-projects, if the total project cost

increases, the additional requirement of funds are to be met by the State

Govt./PIAbbeneficiary societies out of their resources.

- Sub-projects which are not covered under NCDC Act, but are essential for

" the overall development of project area, PIA/PIT has to ensure the financing of

such sub-projects from other agencies.

4, Way.s and means advance to societies

to create infrastructural facilities has

Ways and means advance specially
f the project is not

to be provided to individual societies so that the progress O

hampered for want of funds. Ways and means advance may be

a) a part of first year's outiay
b) a percentage of total outlay
c) sub-project based

The system to be adopted should, huwever, be the same for all the societies

with a view to avoid accounting problems.

5. Subsequent releases

have to be based on utilization/progress

Subsequent releases to societies
te adjustment of

ture. While making subsequent releases, proportiona

of expendi
hen the sub-project is

ways and means advance has to be made so that w

completed, the ways and means advance is fully adjusted.

6.  General

6.1 Sanctioning Authority

Except in cases where NCDC's priori approval is mandatory, the power of

4



er ICDP should best with the Managing

sanctioning/approving sub-project und
t need not be referred to RCS

Director/Chief Executive of PIA and the sub-projec

office for sanction.

6.2 Utilization of assistance
The assistancé sanctioned/released should strictly be utilized for the

purpose for which it is sanctioned. No adjustment of loan or any type of

outstanding amount against the society should be made from the funds

‘sanctionedlrelneased under ICDP.



RELEASE OF NCDC'S SHARE OF ASSISTANCE

NCDC's release of assistance is based on progress of expenditure under
project and the amount already provided by the State Govt. to the Pro
Implementing Agency (PIA). While seeking reimbursement / release of assist
from NCDC, the PIA / PIT should furnish the required information in the folloi

proforma: |
' RETMBURSEMENT CLAIM FROM NCDC'

Name of the Project ... P T3] — o
' : (Amount : Rs. in lak

Item Loanfor | Loanfor | Subsidy Assistance

Civil Works, | MW/Money, [Tenp T 15 | Mg, As

Infrastruc- | S/Cap:; (PIT) | :

ture, Plant & | Rev. Fund
.| Mach. ete. " ete.
i. Assistance sanctioned-by NCDC ,

ii. Assistance released by NCDC - i
iii. *Assistance released by State ﬁs

Govt. o PTA /PIT = - :
iv. Assistance provided o societies ' '
' by PIA p,
v. Expenditure incurred by the
Socieries *
vi. Reimbursement sought from

* Details of assistance released by Sate Govt.

SRR

S.No. 6.0. No. & Date Amount
o Loan | Subsidy

@inN =

Total:

After considering the proposal, NCDC orders release of eligible assistance
to the State Govt. Besides, project related condition, if any, NCDC release order
clearly indicates the period of moratorium on repayment and rate of interest which
is floating and is linked to SBI's Advance Rate. Rebate on timely / advance
repayment is allowed by the Corporation and penal rate of interest (over and abo-2
the effective rate) is charged on the defaulted amount of repayment for the

period of delay.
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STRATEGY FOR DEPOSITS MOBILISATION BY PRIMARY COOPERATIVES AND
ITS IMPACT UNDER INTEGRATED COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT (ICDP)

National Cooperative Development Corporation, New Delhi sanctioned ICDP for Krishna
District, Andhra Pradesh in the year with an outlay of Rs.17.73 crores. Krishna District Cooperative
Central Bank was designated as Project Implementing Agency (PIA) to implement the project
t‘hrough a specially constituted Project Implementing Team (PIT). ICDP, Krishna was aimed at
developing the Primary Agriculture Cooperative Societies (PACS) as viable multipurpose societies
S0 as to undertake facilities and supply of credit, inputs, consumer goods and agricultural
marketing by providing the needed infrastructure and margin money for business promotion. The
intention was also to assist societies to start deposit/savings services to enhance the financial
liquidity for business development. It also contemplated to strengthen the existing functional
cooperatives such as Fisheries, Handloom, Industrial, Agriculture and Horticulture in the like
manner and also to develop human resources through incentives and training.

SUB PROJECT FOR INFRASTRUCTURE OF DEPOSIT COUNTERS

]

The project had the following outlays under the sub-project Deposit Counters to enable the
societies to function as mini bank:-

[Rs. In lakhs)
S.No. | Sector/ Activity Unit Cost | Physical | Total
Outlay Financial
outlay
DEPOSIT COUNTERS

11 Small 0.35 11 42.74
2. Big 0.50 50 27.50
3. Gold Safe 0.50 50 23.65
Total: 211 93.89

This was one of the thrust areas under ICDP, Krishna and many societies approached the
project for establishment of the Deposit Counters.



IMPLEMENTATION OF INFRASTRUCTURE COMPONENTS

establishment of rural bank in the following manner:

ICDP, Krishna had assisted the beneficiary societies for creation of the infrastructure for

o A wooden deposit counter and a defender safe for custody of cash based on requirements/local

(o]

needs.

Some societies were provided counter furniture like wooden sofas, visitors chairs etc. to improve

the customers service.

Selected societies were also provided with strong rooms in view of demand for boosting the

customers confidence.,

For facelift of societies need based repairs in buildings were undertaken.

Project coordinated with NABARD for establishment of Locker facility in Primary Cooperatives

under its Cooperative Development Fund Scheme. As a result 9 societies established locker

facility and more proposals were in the pipeline.

STRATEGY FOR MOBILISING DEPOSITS THROUGH PRIMARY COOPERATIVES (PACS)

)

As a strategy the following activities and capacity building were integrated by the PIT for

successful implementation and achievements of desired results:

A

ACTIVITIES:

o]

o

o

All the pbtential societies were provided the deposit counters and defender safes.
Official and non-officials of the society were motivated for mobilization of deposits.
All the deposit schemes like fixed deposits, recurring deposits, reinvestment deposits
and savings bank A/Cs were introduced in sociefies provided with banking counters.
Mutually acceptable targets were fixed for staff and the Board of Directors for
deposits mobilization.

List of potential depositors were prepared and constant pursuation was done with
them for tapping deposits.

All staff of the PIA, the bank branches, PIT and Field Supervisors were involved in
canvassing for deposits.



Inauguration of the deposit counters was done in a befitting manner by inviting the
VIPs and Chairman of the Bank, MLA and Senior Officials of the PIA etc. to ensure
publicity for success of the activity.

Door to Door Campaign by the staff of the society, PIA and ICDP was conducted for
good beginning. :

Pamphlets on various deposit schemes, comparative advantages and interest rates
were printed and distributed,

Bank supplemented the efforts of the societies by audio cassettes and video
publicity through Cable TV etc. during the deposit mobilization campaigns.

Deposit Mobilization Camps/Meetings were regularly conducted in Villages during
evenings by inviting all the villagers and clarifying their doubts and explaining
benefits of investing with cooperatives. In all, 110 such camps were arranged.
Customers' meets were organized in a planned way. Door to door canvassing was
done prior to the date of customers meet and on the date of customers meet by
ICDP Development Officers, Bank Staff, Managing Committee members and Staff of
the society.

Leaflets with attractive slogans and rates of interest offered were distributed to each
and every house before customers. Banners were displayed at society
conspicuously and press Coverage was also arranged on Deposit Mobilization

Campaign for publicity.

CAPACITY BUILDING INTERVENTIONS FOR DEPOSIT MOBILIZATION

o

ICDP Officers conducted 110 deposit mobilization cafhpaigns during five years of the
project in potential areas at village level. Campaign enlightened the members on
Self help through society and created sound awareness on the functioning of the
society. Members started viewing the society not only a lending agency but also a
rural bank for keeping their surplus amounts in the form of deposits. ,
Project imparted training to all Secretaries of the Primary Cooperatives for
maintenance of accounts and savings mobilization skills.

Supporting staff of societies were also imparted training on delivery of better

services and customer satisfaction.



Deposit regulations for all types of deposits were formulated and distributed to

o

Primaries to follow the regulations to ensure uniform practices for Banking Counters
through out the district. .

o Gold loan regulations were also finalized for issue of Gold loans by the PACS to
ensure uniformity and safe deployment of deposits.

o ICDP field officers were instructed to inspect deposit counters and guide/offer
suggestions for utilization of deposits, their investment and house keeping.

o Appropriate guidelines were issued from time to time for functioning of Banking

Counter on the sound lines.

PROACTIVE ROLE OF PROJECT IMPLEMENTING AGENCY (BANK) IN
MOBILIZATION OF DEPOSITS BY PRIMARY COOPERATIVES

Project Implementing Agency played a key role in accelerating the mobilization of
deposits in PACS. The Krishana District Cooperative Central Bank, as federation of
PACS took up the onus of creating a good i[rxage for cooperatives in the district and also

of its own outstanding performance in all spﬁeres of its activities.

The Bank regulated the deposit mobilization process by framing guidelines on
utilization/investment of deposits so as to safeguard the interest of depositors of PACS
and to meet the deposit obligation by the PACS on demand without any difficulty. The
Bank rendered the necessary support through its staff and other means of canvassing

like Audio, Video, Press Advertisements etc.

Chairman, Managing Committee, Senior Officers and the staff of the Bank took keen
interest for mobilization activity in the societies which provided the necessary impetus for

commandable growth of deposits.
UTILIZATION OF DEPOSITS AND BENEFITS BY PRIMARY COOPERATIVES

o The societies were paying 0.5% extra rate of interest on deposit than offered by the
Krishna District Cooperative Central Bank. Thus the societies had an edge in

attracting deposits.

Y



o PIA allowed 0.5% extra interest on the rate offered by the society for the invéstment
' of the society with the Bank.
o PIA permitted societies to sanction labour employment, consumption loans etc. to
the extent of 20% of long term deposits.
o The societies were allowed to utilize partly the mobilized deposits for non-credit
business like supply of fertilizers, pesticides, seeds and consumer goods.
o The societies had option to invest surplus amount with the Krishna District

Cooperative Central Bank in the form of Deposits.

ACHIEVEMENTS IN DEPOSIT MOBILISED BY PRIMARY COOPERATIVES

Primary Cooperatives in Krishna District mobilized substantial deposits from rural masses, as

.-

shown below, during the last 3 years of the project.

Year of the Project Deposits Growth Rate
Implementation (Rs. In lakhs)
- 318.00 -
1st Year ' 767.49 141 %
2 Year 1333.29 74 %
3 Year 3106.75 133 %

Deposits had increased 10 fold when compared fo the year preceeding the year of
commencement.

IMPACT OF DEPOSIT COUNTERS SUB-PROJECT IN DEVELOPMENT OF COOPERATIVES

The Deposit Counters created a lasting impact on the rural masses in the Krishna District in the
following ways:

o Deposit Counters were established in rural areas where commercial Banks and
Regional Rural Banks have not opened their branches. The banking facilities in Primary
Cooperatives are now available very close to the rural people in the villages leading to
financial inclusion of poor and marginalized population. .

o Deposit mobilization camps (110) in rural areas led to financial literacy and the saving

habits among rural masses.



Many societies started utilizing portion of the deposits to take up non-credit bdsiness
(fertilizer business) and to increase the services to its members.

Some societies also used part of deposits for issue of consumption loans, consumer
durable loans and for self employed schemes which generated more employment in
rural areas.

Some societies started activity of issue of gold loans with the deposits mobilized,
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT IN PRIMARY
COOPERATIVES AND ITS STRATEGY UNDER ICDP

The success of an organization or a project largely depends on the
competency, commitment and performance of the people engaged in it. In the
first instance, the people being appointed for the specific jobs in an organization
or a project must be selected very carefully. Only those with right kind of skills
and attitude be inducted. The only consideration for their selection should be
their suitability to the job requirements. Secondly, they should be oriented,
trained and developed in a systematic way, for special and higher level skills
heeded for attaining the organization Iproject and personal goals.

In the rural development projects like ICDP, a large number of cooperative
societies are covered for assistance, promotion and development to achieve the
overall objectives of the project. Thus, for the success of ICDP, it is imperative
that all category of people i.e. members of project implementation team, elected
management, paid employees and ordinary members of cooperative societies,
already existing or likely to be positioned, are oriented and developed for their

fuller participation and performance of their role for a synergistic action.

As far as a cooperative society is concerned, its each of the three

category of personnel needs to be oriented and trained differently and effectively:

- Members must be oriented and educated for their full participation with
awareness on their role, responsibilities and rights. Values of loyalty,
initiative, enterprise and cooperation needs to be simultaneously nurtured.
To enhance the production and productivity in agriculture and other
occupations, the members’ skills need to be refurbiéhed and upgraded.
Board of Directors need continuous and effective sensitization on their
own role and the changes in the environment, policies and programmes.
Appropriate knowledge and techniques for policy formulation, publié
relations, image building and performance evaluation needs to be infused
to facilitate correct decision-making for the benefit of cooperatives. Their

resourcefulness, tact, integrity and sincerity also have to be strengthened.

o /



Job-specific and need-based training and development interventions are
required to be adapted to help employees to perform their roles,
responsibilities to optimize their output for achieving the objectives of

cooperatives

EXISTING SCENARIO:

Agricultural Credit Cooperatives in the country lack proper personnel policies,

trained and professional manpower, proper systems and organizational ethos.
The Expert Committee on Rural Credit (NABARD) and Vaidyanathan Commiittee,

in their reports have recently made some of the following observations on the

people related aspects of the credit cooperatives.

1.

Imbalances in staffing i.e. too many people for certain jobs, too few for
certain others is very common. Over staffing is widely spread in lower
level staff in the banks. At the same time instances of under staffing is
observed in some institutions. |

Poor quality of personnel. The staff are mostly recruited at the level of
clerk, typist, cashier and are inadequately qualified. - In due course
these climb up and occupy senior positions.

Political patronage and misuse of power in recruitment is rampant.
Chief Executives are selected out of the officials of State Government
and appointed by the Government.

Unsuitability of cadre system for the PACS. The appointment, transfer,
promotion, salary etc. of cadre employees are decided by cadre
authorities making them less loyal to the PACS and more to their
authority.

Lack of training to the junior level staff and the secretaries of the
PACS, and sensitization of members and management committees.



7. Poor quality o training by the existing cooperative training institutions.
8. Lack of clarity on delineation of roles and responsibilities of directors

and executives.

APPRAOCH TO ENHANCE COMPETENCIES:

Various Task Force and Committees in the recent past had also
recommended many initiatives for recruiting personnel and developing them
for their existing and the newer roles. Measures to sensitize and involve the
management committees and members have also been enlisted. Suggestion
to make higher tier apex/district cooperatives more active and responsible for
training the staff and members of the lower tier cooperatives have also been
made. In fact apex /district cooperatives should take over the role of state
cooperative unions/junior training centres, wherever these have performed
inadequately. Further, it is also suggested to create a HRD/T rammg Cell in
the federation/cooperative banks for this purpose.

To enhance the competencies of the people, the following are

continuously needed:

- Learning-defined by Bass and Vaughan (.1 967) as a relatively permaneﬁt
change in behaviour that occurs as a result of practice or experience.
Education-the development of the knowledge, values and understanding
required in all aspects of life rather than the knowledge and skills relating
to particular areas of activity.

Development-the growth or realization of a person’s ability and potential
through the provision of learning and educational experiences.

Training-the planned and systematic modification of behaviour . through
learning events, programmes and instruction which enable individuals to
achieve the levels of knowledge, skills and competence to carry out their

work effectively.

€



The core members of the HRD/training cell must understand these basic
concepts thoroughly. They must be first trained and developed for this
purpose. A clar understanding and skills on these aspects would help them
to design, plan and organize these interventions.

MANPOWER DEVELOPMENT MEASURES UNDER ICDP:

Realizing the importance of training and development of cooperative
personnel and project implementation team (PIT) and also the orientation of
various other functionaries at the district level to seek their full support and
cooperation, adequate financial provisions have been made for such
mechanisms in the ICD Projects. The major items of Manpower Development

and Training Component of the projects are:

- Training of PIT Personnel

- Orientation/training of elected managements of the cooperatives

- Training of paid employees i.e. manager and staff

- Member Education

- Training of worker members of cooperatives e.g. fishermen, weavers,
poultry farmers etc.

- Orientation of district level officials of all concerned departments

- Training of DCCB and PACS key personnel (for strengthening linkages
between the DCCB and PACS)

- Study visits

- Extensive on the job guidance and consultancy by the development
officers to the cooperative personnel.

- Incentive schemes linked to business promotion.



STRATEGY FOR TRAINING OF COOPERATIVE PERSONNEL :

For the success of a cooperative society it is imperative that the three type
of personnel i.e. (i) Managers and Staff (i) Managing Committee and the (iii)
Ordinary Members are capable of performing their role and responsibilities.
ICDP has made provision for their training and development.

() Manager and Staff

At a primary level these consist of a manager/Secretary, a
clerk/accountant, and a salesman and/or a godown keeper. The manager is to
run a day-to-day business and also conduct liaison with elected management,
members, bank etc. and also supervise the staff. For growth and prosperity of a
society. He has to be expert in planning the business, adept in book-keeping,
foresighted enough to plan the diversification of business and work effectively
and efficiently for its success. It is important to consider his profile and find out
his plus and minus points. In other words the gaps in his knowledge skills and
attitude and thereby provide him a training having a strong practical bias.

In order to achieve the objectives of ICDP, this key person needs to be
thoroughly trained in the skills of preparation of a basic business plan and others
such as credit business plan, input business plan, consumer business plan
Besides, skill upgradation training in various functions like credit and savings,
‘Farm Input Management’, ‘Storage Management’, ‘ Marketing functions’,
Consumer business’, Financial management and Accounting and Budgetmg will
immensely help. In special commodity, activity or service societies the
manager/secretary has to understand the technical aspects and its effective use

to promote the business of cooperative.
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He must also be trained in convening the meetings and recording the
minutes. The manpower development interventions should promote
organizational as well as individual goals. The incentives inbuilt in the projedt
can add to his motivation to learn and perform better. The training programmes

for Managers are to be organized by ICM/ACSTIs of the respective region/state

The other staff like accountant or a clerk, salesman, godown-keeper etc.
also need to be trained in performing various skills in their specific areas of work
so as to support the manager and the organisation. TheoDevelopment Officers
can provide them forma and “on the job training” supported by regular guidance

and supervision.

(i) Elected Management of Members

]

It is well known that leaders do naturally possess a strong and robust
sense of understanding the things. However, the new technology and modern
methods of management, decision making, accounting, etc. make it obligatory to
undergo a formal training to at least develop an appreciation. It is only from this
point of view that elected management must be made to undergo formal training
in basic management and financial management of the business of a
cooperative. Basic management may cover areas like business in credit,
savings, inputs, consumers, marketing, storage, welfare services, etc.-while
financial management may cover training in various books of accou8nts in
PACS, financial statements, planning in a multi-coop., etc. |

Besides, proper guidance in regular conduct of the board meetings,

decision making, recording minutes etc. will prove highly useful.



(i)  Members

It may be a big task to enlighten al the members and motivate them for
active participation and improving their production/occupation/trade. Al the
people, however, may not learn from one source but may learn it through

someone who has learnt directly from the main source.

Objectives of the member education programmes should be clearly spelt out
and a fine balance in educating about ‘rights and privileges’ and ‘duties and
responsibilities’ be maintained. A suggested design for the member education

programme is as under:

- concept, values, principles and practices of cooperation

- bylaws, objectives and functions of a codperative society

- role, responsibilities, obligations and rights of members

- appreciation on business/projects undertaken by the cooperative society

- importance of members’ participation for success of the cooperative
society-preparedness, means and commitment for effective participation
various types of participation and contributions by members

- role of members in Member Education Programmes

- role and responsibilities of members in Annual General Meeting

- cooperative terminology

SUGGESTED PROCESS FOR RESULT-ORIENTED TRAININGS:

' Based on clear insight of the process of learning and conditions of
learning for adults, a systematic process needs to be followed for
designing/developing a training programme. The steps involved in designing and
implementation are:

~



1. Analysis of overall system (situation study) of the cooperative society
2, Determining/Assessing Training Needs
3. Analysis and Prioritizing of Training Needs.
4. Preparation of Learning Objectives
5. Preparation of Participants Profile
. 6. Preparation of Session Design.
- content analysis
- sequencing of contents
- selection of training methods and aids
7. Finalizing of Programme Syllabus and Schedule
Implementation /Conducting Training Programme
9. Evaluation

10.  Improving subsequent Training Programmes
‘ For the training programmes to be organized by other institutions, General
Manager and PIT members should ensure that the resources earmarked are put
to the best use. The training institute/agency which has appropriate expertise
and experience in successfully organizing the identified training programmes be
only selected. The specific training needs for the target group must be identified
and then suitable course design by worked out. The programme should be
conducted as per the convenience of trainees and in a professional manner. PIT
must associate closely in all the phases of training process to ensure quality, so
that participants could easily apply the skills learnt during training on the job. PIT
must study the course and evaluation report submitted by the training institute to

review feedback and to decide on future programmes.



A large number of training/education programmes are to be organized and
facilitated by the Development Officers. It is one of their main job bvesides
providing guidance and to do trouble shcoting on the spot on every
visit/interaction with' the society. The Development Officers are provided
appropriate training design and presentation skills at TOPIC Institute of NCDC to
perfbrm their role effectively. Trainer Manuals, Teaching illustrations, Aids and
additional Notes to implement the identified training/education programmes are
;‘Jrovided to the Development Officers during training. The implementation of
training /member education programmes should be phased suitably to yield
maximum results to the project.
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Newly Notified Services

- NCDC sponsored scheme for providing financial assistance for services of
Tourism, Hospitality & Transpott, Electricity & Power (New/Non-
conventional), Rural Housing, Hospital, Health Car2 and Education -

Guidelines regarding.

The Department of Agriculture and Cooperation, Ministry of Agn'culture,
Government of India vide its Gazette Notification No 957 and 459 dated
18.5.2010 and 19.8.2010 respéctively has notified services of (i) Tourism, (ii)
Hospitality & Transport, (ill) Electricity & Power, (iv) Rural tiousing, (v) Hospital,
(vi) Health Care and :vii) Education as notified servic:.; for the purpose of
extending NCDC’s financial assistance. As a result, e scope of NCDC’s

charter has been enlarced to assist the ac
In Ppursuance, NCDC has introducer 3 formal scheme for

alive societies under

tivities related 1~ notified services on

cooperative basis.
extending financial assistance for Programmes of cocper

these notified services. Detailed guidelines of the new scine:: e are as follows:

l CO-OPERATIVES ELIGIBLE FOR ASSISTANCE UNDER THE SCHEME

AH ‘cooperative societies registered uhder_ State/Multi State Cooperative
Society Act undertaking the above activities shall be eligible for assistance
subject to fulfillment of the guidelines of the scheme. Assistance for fural

housing programme, the society should be in possession of land.

Il PURPOSES FOR WHICH NCDC ASSISTANCE WILL BE EXTENDED:

NCDC assistarice will be extended for the following purposes:-

i) Creation, - Modernization, Expansion, Repairs, Renovation etc. of
infrastructural facilities relating to Touris'Fn; Hospftélity & Transport,

generation and distribution of Electricity by New, Non-conventional and



i)

 sources

renewable sources of energy, Rural Housing, Hospital, Health Care and

Education.
Margin money for raising working capital required for day to day
operations of above services other than rural housing.

Working capital assistance to meet requirement for day to day operations

of above services other than rural housing.

Hlustrative list of activities covered under the above scheme is as

follows:

. Tourism and Hospitalig

Settmg up, modermzatron/renovat'on expansion of small and medium size

Hotels, Guest Houses, Restaurants, Canteens, Rest rooms, Wash rooms, -

Public utilities, Eco- friendly paiks, Recreation facilities, other tourism

related V infrastructural faéiiities elc,

| Transgért

Purchase of Commercial Trant port vehicles such as Bus, Car,
Lorry/Ti ruck Boat, Ship, etc. for iransport of passengers & goods and
modernlzatnon/renovautlon expansion of transport related

setting up,
facilities like workshop, fuel station, parking/docking

infrastructural
facilities, stands, etc.

Electricity generation by New/Non-conventionalirenewable energy

Setting up, modernization/renovation and expansion of  units for

generation of electricity by New, Non — conventional & Renewable Energy
sources such as windmills, mini hydel projects, solar, bio-mass, co-

generation etc. and distribution and transmission of power.



Rural Housing

4. Construction of Residential Housing units in rural areas with carpet areq

not exceedmg 1200 Sq. feet per house/ﬂat/apartment Hostels,
Community Centres and development of related infrastructural facilities

such as housing p!ots site_development, roads, parks, Sewerage &

drainage system, water supply, etc.  Areas which are outside the
Municipal limits shall be regarded as rural areas,

Hospital, Health Care a_nd"Educah’on

5. .Sett:ng -up, modemization / rehovation expansion ard acquiring of

-equmenfs etc. for activites related to hosp:tal health car» and education,

VvV MoD:s oF FINANCING
. NCD<: assistance shall be provided either through the concemed State
-Governmeni=/UT administrations or dxrectly to the cooperative:s

which fulfiil the
follc: wng criteria o be ehg:ble for direct fundmg assistance:

"~ {) " The cooperative should have been in operation for not less tha:: 3
» yenis ‘ .

s
e

(ii) The Cooperative should have posmve net worth, not less than 100

paid up share capital i.e. there shoutd be no erosion in the
share cap;tal ' '

%
Pa.'.,d up

.
W

(0 ) Tbe cooperative should not have mcurred any cash loss dunng last

yea) and there should be net prof' tin atleas( two of previai

(IV) Debt eqmty rat:o sha" norma"y be 65: 35 dependmg upOn the
economac vzab:hty of the project,



Highlights of Impact
Studies in Some ICDPs



The Integrated Cooperative Development Project ( ICDP), was introduced by NCDC in
participation with Govt.of India and State Govt. in the Seventh Five Year Plan for overall
development of selected districts through cooperative entrepreneurial efforts in the sphere
of Agriculture and allied sectors such as Dairy, Fishery, Poultry/Piggery, Handloom,
Coir, Rural/Cottage Industry and the like. The programme has been continued in
succeeding Five Year Plans, thus gaining recognition as a unique participatory
- developmental effort. By December 2012, the Corporation has brought 302 districts
under the Scheme across the country. The States like Kerala, Andhra Pradesh, Haryana,
Arunachal Pradesh, Meghalaya, Mizoram and Himachal Pradesh have covered all their
districts under the Scheme and few State out of above have taken up the programmes
under Second Phase too.

NCDC gets the impact study conducted from reputed Consultants from time to time to
assess the impact / benefit that have accrued to the members of the society and to
ascertain whether scheme be continued in the successive Five Year Plans,. To carry
forward the scheme during 12" FYP, an independent evaluation of following nine ICDPs
was assigned to NPC, New Delhi:

1) Guntur, Andhra Pradesh vi) Ratlam, Madhya Pradesh

i) Jodhpur, Rajasthan ' vil)  Goapalganj, Bihar

iii)  Karnal, Haryana viii)  Haridwar, Uttarakhand and -
iv) - Deoghar, Jharkhand iX)  Arunachal Pradesh

V) Hooghly, West Bengal

The selected projects were completed during 11" FYP and were selected from those
States which were not considered for such study earlier. It is observed from the
report that implementation of ICDP resulted in improvement of performance of
societies under agriculture, consumer and allied sectors. There has been significant
improvement in membership, share capital, deposit, credit business and non-credit
business of PACS/LAMPs and allied sector cooperatives under the project.
Creation/renovation of storage capacity helped the societies in improving their
business and providing timely fertilizer and inputs to farmer members. Infrastructure
such as deposit counter, strong room, safe etc. helped the societies in mobilization of
rural deposit from member. Creation of super-market and shops helped the consumer
societies/stores to diversify their business. Similarly, allied sector societies such as

' dairy, fishery, horticulture, industries, weaver societies have also been able to
increase the business with creation of infrastructure and business development under
the project. The findings of the evaluation study are summarized below:

- Total Investment ‘ Rs. 8934.69 lakh-
- Subsidy (out of above investment) Rs.1654.76 1akh
- No.of cooperative assisted 1313



Infrastructure created

a) Storage capacity created 52,750 MT
b) Storage capacity renovated 32,900 MT
¢) Deposit counter/lockers -
d) Consumer store/shop 174
No of persons trained(Chairman, 55905
Managing Committee, Managers,
Accountants and Salesmen)
Direct employment generated 674838

Average annual growth rate achieved
a) PACS/LAMPS (ICDP-wise details at Annexure-I)

% Membership 0.97% to 7.50%

& Share capital 1.9910 27.77%

& Credit Operations 3.77% to 21.59%
% Deposits 5.28% to 146.5%
% Non credit, business 4.14% t0 363.28%

b) Consumer Sector

c) Business of Mkt. society

1.42% to 18%
4.57% to 21.34%

d) Business of Handloom socy. 4.05% and 8.52%
(Guntur and Gopalganj)
e) Fishery sector 3.71% to 8.74%
f) Dairy sector 8.54% and 18.32%
(Ratlam & Karnal)
g) Horticulture sector 7.07%
(Ratlam)
h) Industrial Cooperative
Karnal 18.41%
Guntur -1.77%



- Pre-project status and Terminal Year Achievement/Impact (ICDP-wise

details indicated below):

Arunachal Pradesh

Rs.in lakh
Item/Activity Pre-project | Terminal Year Remarks
LAMPS
No.of LAMPS 32 33
Membership 12429 19447
Share capital > 134.07 291.9
Deposits 0.00 0.00
Credit business 0.00 0.00
Non-credit business 1774.12 2454.46
No.of LAMPS in profit 10 13
Total amount of profit 249.81 405.58
Coop.General societies
No.of CGS 69 68 1 CGS was closed
Membership (Nos.) 7591 8460
Share capital 32.45 32.9
Business Turnover 645.17 863.16
No.of CGS in profit 40 50
Total amount of profit 114.97 168.51
Multi-purpose Coop.Societies
No.of MPCS 192 247
Membership (Nos.) 9777 12314
Share Capital 177.21 715.59
Business Turnover 537.18 675.49
No.of MPCS in profit 118 192
Total amount of profit 162.48 226.47
MARKFED
Membership(Nos.) 10 25
Share capital 1.00 41.8
Profit 0.08 11.65




Guntur, Andhra Pradesh

Rs.in lakh
Item/Activity Pre-project Terminal Year Remarks
PACS
Membership (No.in lakh) 9.18 10.57
Share capital 3441.92 5000.37
Deposits 90.10 849.37
Credit disbursement 5301.20 7129.98
Non credit business 1533.65 4729.56
NO.of PACS in profit 104 59 1 Due to NPA
Profit 8720.26 6225.55 _J | accounting practice
Consumer sector
Membership (Nos) 26372 27213
Share capital 10.27 20.92
Working capital 156.78 228.01
Total business turnover 774.91 1466.81
No.of societies in profit 4 1 ) Negative
Amount of profit 1.07 -1.85 I
Handloom/Weaver Sector
No.of societies working 30 30
Membership (Nos.) 2339 3478
Share capital 41.05 47.64
Business tumover 255.12 350.55
No.of societies in profit 16 9 I Poor sales &
Profit 3.1 -7.16 J management
practices & stiff
completion

Fisheries Cooperatives
Membership (Nos.) 1275 1275
Share capital 37349 37349
Business turnover 2.4523 4.1415
No.of societies in profit 6 6
Net profit - 0.72
Farmer Service Cooperative
Membership (Nos.) 6279 7395

hare capital 46.51 147.38
Business turnover 399.75 628.50
Profit 8.98 4527
Industries Cooperatives
Membership (Nos.) 112 112
Share capital - -
Business Turnover 15 1 13
No.of societies in profit 3 3
Profit ’ 50000 50000
Marketing Cooperatives
Membership (Nos,) 266 140
Share capital 1.49 1.60
Business tumover 280.93 508.72
Profit -0.40 3.27
Women Cooperatives
Membership (Nos.) 80 80
Working capital 1.21 1.41
Business turnover 1.49 1.72
No.of societies in profit 2 4
Profit 0.06 0.08
SHG Cooperatives
Membership (No.s) 610 610
Working capital 9.28 11.02
Business turnover 11.19 12.85
No.of societies in profit 52 52
Profit 1.12 1.26

L4
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Jodhpur —Rajasthan

Rs.in lakh
Item/Activity Pre-project | Terminal Year | Remarks
PACS
Membership (No.in lakh) | 1.56 2.09
Share capital 856.15 1196.38
deposits 131.63 179.26
Credit disbursement 6747.82 14778.04
Non credit business 733.2 1094.11
No.of societies in profit 140 155
Profit 456.58 793.46
Marketing societies
Membership (Nos.) 8169 9918
Share capital 105.48 170.42
Business turnover 6851.08 12299.09
No.of societies in profit 7 7
Profit 48.48 111.6
Wholesale Consumer
Store
Membership (No) 9739 11350
Share capital 25.84 52.2
Business turnover 2284.98 4110.64
No.of store in profit 1 1
Profit 59.66 129.82




Rs.in lakh

Item/Activity Pre-project | Terminal Year | Remarks
PACS
Membership (No.in lakh) 1.50 1.92
Share capital 1861.68 2709.09
Deposits 665.4 872.03
Credit disbursement 23154.73 38166.93
Non credit business 1836.15 2372.96
NO.of societies in profit 40 3 1 Reasons awaited
Profit 122.61 1776 [
Marketing Societies
Membership (Nos) 5574 7152
Share capital 18.75 16.17
Business turnover 5065.74 11509.61
No.of societies in profit 2 2
Profit 63.68 102.72
Industrial Sector
Membership (Nos.) 18 22
Share capital 0.37 1.02
Business turnover 6.41 5.09
No.of societies in profit 1 1
Profit 0.64 0.61
Consumer Wholesale Store
Membership (Nos.) 6667 6671
Share capital 34.95 36.21
Business turnover(PDS) 424.11 394.37 ) | Reasons awaited
No.of societies in profit 1 1 I
Profit NA NA -
Membership (Nos.) ° 26537 30709
hare capital 68.16 65.61
Business turnover 902.32 1923.64
No.of societies in profit 412 585
Profit 9.13 2.95 Due to repayment of
loan
Labour & Construction
Membership (Nos.) 1760 2482
Share capital 0.16 0.25
No.of societies in profit 53 65
Profit NA NA

o
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Deoghar, Jharkhand

Rs.in lakh

Item/Activity Pre-project | Terminal Year | Remarks

PACS

Membership (No.in lakh) 0.26 0.36

Share capital 104.42 314.58

Deposits 3.10 179.76 PACS not
involved in credit
business

Credit disbursement 19.79 0.00

Non credit business 0.02 194.13

NO.of societies in profit NA NA

Profit NA NA

Hoogly, West Bengal

Jtem/Activity Pre-project | Terminal Year | Remarks

PACS

Membership (Nos) 95135 104536

Share capital (in lakh) 238.135 412.4

Deposits 2318.35 32103

Credit disbursement 2648.85 4491.15

Non credit business 327.75 608.00

NO.of societies in profit 120 83 Due to NPA
practice

Profit NA NA

Consumer Sector

Membership (Nos) 1565 1569

Share capital 24.85 25.02

Working Capital 275.35 288.78

Business turnover 1105.22 1185.85 L

No.of societies in profit NA NA

Amount of profit 18.05 2425

| Weaver Cooperatives

Membership (Nos.) 6300 4742

Total advance 305 320

Total working capital 320 960

Total deposits 177 539

No.of societies in profit 19 37

Profit NA NA

Marketing Cooperatives

Membership (Nos.) 3648 3599

Business turnover 1530.92 1468.46 Lack of
coord.bet-ween
fedn &
PDS/PACS

No.of societies in profit 3 4

Profit 2.41 3.30




Ratlam, Madhya Pradesh

. Rs.in lakh
Item/Activity Pre-project | Terminal Year | Remarks
PACS
Membership (No. in lakh) 1.33 1.42
Share capital 1021.21 1804.61
Deposits 1081.03 2250.43
Credit disbursement 4918.38 12669.14
Non credit business 2881.95 49422
Credit +non credit 7800.33 17611.34
Profit 132.82 208.57
No.of societies in profit 83 82
Consumer Sector
Membership (Nos) 1630 1763
Share capital 10.86 9.36
Business turnover 367.73 841.43
Profit 1.31 4.02
Dairy Sector
No.of societies working 188 194
Membership (Nos.) 7156 7346
Share capital 14.42 2147
Business turnover 423.22 637.41
No.of societies in profit 100 117
Profit 20.25. 19.79
Fisheries Cooperatives
Membership (Nos.) 212 212
Share capital 0.12 0.15
Business turnover 2.5 3.0
No.of societies in profit 8 8
Profit 0.2 0.35

Horticulture Cooperatives

2 societies, membership — 92, CAGR - 7.07%. Both societies in

profit.

Industries Cooperatives

2 societies, membership — 112, business turnover - Rs.7.68 lakh.
One society in profit. '

Marketing Cooperatives

3 societies, membership ~ 1184, share capital - Rs.9.09 lakh,
business turnover - Rs.1041.67 lakh (terminal year) and
Rs.832.93 lakh in pre-project year. All societies in profit. CAGR

is 4.57%

Women Cooperatives

5 societies, membership -1329, share capital - Rs.7.93 lakh,
business turnover - Rs.13.45 lakh. Two societies in profit.

¥ )
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Gopalganj, Bihar

Rs.in lakh
Item/Activity Pre-project | Terminal Year | Remarks
PACS
Membership (No. in lakh) | 1.12 1.21
Share capital 50.3 58.9
Credit disbursement 160.42 766.36
Non credit business 42.45 625.62
Credit +non credit 202.87 1391.98
Deposits mobilized 8.08 1060.11
Amount of profit 9.57 18.71
No.of societies in profit 106 113
Vypar Mandals
Membership (Nos) 2825 3023
Share capital 2.14 2.58
Business turnover 8.52 12.74
Net profit 1.27 3.26
No.of societies in profit 4 6
Fisheries Sector
Membership (Nos.) 1529 1646
Share capital 0.26 0.26
Business turnover 0.9 1.76
Net profit NA 0.22
No.of societies in profit 4 4
Weavers Cooperatives
Membership (Nos.) 716 717
Share capital 2.53 2.53
Business turnover 0.65 1.25
Net profit 0.17 0.18
No.of societies in profit 3 3




Haridwar, Uttarakhand

Rs.in lakh
Item/Activity Pre-project | Terminal Year | Remarks
PACS
Membership (No. in lakh) 0.95 1.10
Share capital 253.71 453.07
Credit disbursement 1556.35 3701.02
Non credit business 1234.38 2158.81
Credit +non credit 2790.73 5859.83
No.of societies in profit 20 21
Profit
Marketing Societies
Membership (Nos) 6878 3722
Share capital 4.15 7.71
Business turnover 66.68 175.42
Mktg.Agril Produce
No.of societies in profit 2 2
Seed Store
No.of Societies 7 7
Share capital 0.57 0.80
Business turnover 36.61 36.88
No.of societies in profit 5 7
District Wholesale Coop. '
Consumer Store
Membership (Nos.) 2996 4919
Share capital 0.66 1.1
Business turnover 174.79 402.22
Fisheries Cooperatives

All the 5 Fisheries Cooperatives in the district

with 85 members are in profits
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Major observations of the report

1.

10.

1.

Out of 9 Projects, 3 projects viz. Hoogly (West Bengal), Ratlam (M.P.) and
Haridwar (Uttarakhand) were completed in time. Jodhpur (Rajasthan) was
delayed by one year while Gopalganj (Bihar), Guntur (Andhra Pradesh) and
Arunachal Pradesh were delayed by 3 years. 2 project viz. Karnal (Haryana) and
Deoghar (Jharkhand) were completed before time. ~

First tea grower cooperative was assisted in Arunachal Pradesh and thus acted as

‘nucleus for coverage of new areas under tea plantations. In addition, the project

introduced the concept of micro-finance through self help groups of women from
BPL category who are involved with piggery and poultry farming. These groups
were linked to the cooperative societies which helped in income generation of
women in the group.

Jodhpur ICDP resulted in tremendous achievement in terms of business
undertaken by PACS, Marketing and Consumer Store. Jodhpur Wholesale
Consumer Store created impressive infrastructure registering a growth from pre-
project level of Rs.22.85 crores to Rs.41.11 crores during terminal period of the
project.

There has been positive growth in number of profit making PACS in Jodhpur
(Rajasthan), Gopalganj (Bihar), Arunachal Pradesh and Haridwar (Uttarakhand).
However, a negative growth rate on this account was seen in Guntur (Andhra
Pradesh), Karnal (Haryana), Hooghly (West Bengal), Ratlam (Madhya Pradesh).
This was due to making provisions for NPA and high establishment cost die to
increase in manpower. :

‘Deposit counters/Iron Safe/Lockers were provided under the projects helped in

increasing deposit mobilization by PACSD/LAMPS.

PACS in Deoghar (Jharkhand) were doing negligible business prior to
implementation of ICDP. After taking up ICDP, PACS registered tremendous
growth in deposit mobilization and non-credit business.

Creation/renovation of storage capacity resulted in diversifying the business of
societies.

Linkage of Self Help Groups with PACS in Hooghly included economic activities
for self sustenance, social activities and voluntary participation in the recovery.
Women participation and empowerment came into force as around 90% of
members registered were women.

Dairy societies in Karnal contributed in increasing sale of milk of societies as the
sale of milk increased from 9.02 lakh to 19.24 lakh during terminal year of
project. .
Marketing of agriculture produce by marketing societies recorded higher
achievement of Rs.4807 lakh against a target of Rs.4100 lakh in Jodhpur district.

‘However PDS business came down on account of transfer of same to private

sector.

DCCB Jodhpur provided timely funds to the societies from its own sources
without waiting for release of funds from State Govt. so as to avoid delay in
implementation due to lack of funds.
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12. Several PACS have diversified business activities like storage, seeds and fertilizer
business with infrastructure created under ICDP. Many PACS are planning to
diversify into other businesses.

13. Under ICDP Karnal, loan amount advanced by PACS increased significantly
during the project period due to infusion of funds under ICDP. Loan recovery
also improved and stood at 99%.

14. Under ICDP Hooghly, West Bengal, PACS were involved in organizing SHG and
credit linking activities to ensure wide reach of the credit.

15. Under ICDP Ratlam, software was got prepared by the PIT to ensure smooth and
accurate maintenance of project funds and for better management of project.
Recovery was 100%.

16. Under ICDP Gopalganj, Bihar, improvement on various parameters like
diversified business and increase in number of profit making societies in the
terminal year confirms sustainability of PACS. Funds were received in time by
societies and disbursed as per project phasing.

17. Projects were delayed due to delay in constitution of PIT and release of funds by
State Govt.

18. More training programmes and awareness camps under ICDP, Deoghar needed to
be organized. Also skill of PACS staff under ICDP Deoghar needed to be
developed.

19. Under ICDP, Hooghly, West Bengal, marketing societies could not increase its
businessodue to stiff competition and lack of coordination between marketing
federation and primary marketing societies & PACS.

Suggestions by NPC, the Consultants to make ICD Projects more effective

i) Incentive scheme for societies should be continued after completion of
projects. o
ii) Optimization of manpower in the societies should be ensured through

systematic manpower assessment.

iii)  Societies should develop vertical and horizontal integration for future growth.

iv)  PACS in the districts may be made eligible to serve as Common Service
Centres (CSCs) as has been done by the State Govt. of West Bengal for
delivering various public, private and social sector services.

V) There is necessity to develop professionalism and management systems in
PACS.

vi)  Provision for unit cost of construction in the DPR needs to be realistic.

vii)  Long delays in putting DPR into practice should be avoided.

viii)  Training and HR capacity building of project Implementation Team should be
ensured before launching of the project.

ix)  Accounting system for societies should be improved

X) ICDP activities should be given boost through effective PR practices.

xi)  Participation of weaker sections and women could be improved through
measures like gender based budgeting and section specific sub-plans.

xii)  Bank guarantee and credit limit procedures for fertilizer business needs to be
simplified by DCCB.
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xiii)  There is need for one officer from DCCB/PIA to be termed as coordinator and
remain throughout the project implementation period

xiv) Majority of PACS in Deoghar, Jharkhand need to be developed as
independent business entity.

xv)  Decentralize and transfer some of the powers of DCCB/PIA to cooperatives to
speed up the pace of implementation and create a sense of belongingness.
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